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Year 2015, the real estate sector inherits from previous years an easy
down state following the recession in domestic economy as a result of export
declination, which is the main factor of the economic growth, and fell steadily in
the recent years, weakening purchasing power among consumers and drop of
overall investment. On the other hand, positive factors were a growth of tourism
industry helped stabilize overall domestic economy including an increase of
government investments.

Operating results of the Company were as follows.
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In 2016, the growth rate of Thai economy, as forecast by relating institutes,
may rise approx by 3-4%. The external impacts on Thai economy is the volatility
of the “Yuan” - Chinese currency where China is one of the major trading partners
of Thailand. Furthermore, the imposing of policy to increase interest rate by US
Central Bank affects the economy in domestic and global scale as well. The
tourism industry is expected to continue its growth, in which the quality should
be enhanced. It is crucial that government undertake measures and invests in
mega projects to expand the investment and stimulate the economy.

Normally, the Company’s operating results in the past years were ranged at
approx. 2,000 million baht per year, with the low growth rate. It is clear that the
growth trend of the Company is unfavorable and it is necessary to re-organize the
structure and expand business to stimulate the expansion and competitiveness in
real estates market. Thus, the direction for the Company’s business is to focus on
development of properties for sales, which is the existing principle. Another factor
is that our business strength is focused on low-raised housing where customers
always rely on our personnel what is skilled and experienced through decades
and what assure customers’ confidence. On the other hand, the Company will
implement business expansion plan - real estate for rent as to increase income
from rent of property in a long term as well as to stabilize the financial status
and to expand business for long term, steady growth efficiently.

However, the strategy plan to move forward still needs to be carefully executed
in order to create confidence in its performance, where the profit from real estate
business must be correctly maintained with focus on financial discipline where
the D/E Ratio should be kept in a reasonable rate. The Company continues to
develop the low-raised properties and other products that will meet the market
need. The strength of Chuan Chuen brand will be continued while the income
from rent of real estate will steadily grow.

In 2016, the Company has set its sale at approximate 2,800 million baht,
representing a growth rate of approximate 13% in comparison to year 2015. The
main products are single house and town house such as ChuanChuen Grand
Ekkachai-Bang Bon, ChuanChuen Grand Ratchapruk-Rama5 and Leon on
Sukhumvit 62. In addition, the Company will acquire land in appropriate location
to set and develop new project.

In 2016, the products and projects will be adjusted to meet customers’
requirement with concept: “Home is where the heart is” which will promote as
well as enhance the Company brand vivid image.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to convey my appreciation
to all the parties for your continued participation and support. We will move the
Company through issues and obstacles and reach the great success in the future.

//;WM

Suthep Wongvorazathe
Chairman
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Characteristic Of Business
Background

Established some 60 years ago in 1956 with a registered capital of only
Bt8 million, MK Real Estate Development Public Co., Ltd. has been in the
real estate business, building residences for sale and for rent, first under the
registered name of “Munkongsathapat General Partnership” with objectives of
contracting construction projects. Five years after its establishment, Munkong
or MK started the real estate business along with construction businesses. In
1968, Ch. Munkong Trading Limited Partnership for retailing and wholesaling
construction supplies and materials. And the first housing project was conceived
in 1977 under the name of “ChuanChuen Community” and the housing business
grew steadily because of the quality appreciated by consumers. In 1990, MK
became the first real estate company registered in the Stock Market of Thailand
and in 1993 become a public company. lts business expanded to real estate
development for rent and fully-integrated services. In 1994, MK developed the
first ChuanChuen Golf Club. In 2005, detached houses were introduced to the
market under the brand of “ChuanChuen” and “Serene House.” Today, more than
57 housing projects have been developed for sale in Bangkok and its outlying

provinces.

Business prosperity

In 2015, major shareholding structure was changed. Mr. Suthep Wongvorazathe,
holding 20.64% stake bought 100% shares in Prospect Development Co., Ltd.,
a developer of factory buildings and warehouses for rent with an aim to make
long-term revenue and secure additional opportunities for corporate development.

The current subsidiaries shareholding structure is as follows:

dadoumsiiofuluusangos | The current subsidiaries shareholding structure
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The housing image has been refreshed to grow from the strong foundation
under the business concept of “We Build A Place of Family Togetherness,” in
which project design, interior decoration and overall landscaping have been
modernized to meet clients’ requirements in the contemporary world. The

logo and advertising concept have also been modernized.
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MK is now focusing on horizontal real estate development for sale under
the brand of “ChuanChuen” at the affordable prices at the medium and down
markets, for instance, a townhouse at about from Bt2 million or a twin house
at about from Bt4 million. A residential project close to a mass transit system,
not far from the current project sites where MK customer base stands. The
average sales period is about 12-18 months. Non-performing assets will be
turned into a working capital to fund the business ventures. MK will also adjust
the revenue ratio real estate for sale to real estate for rent and services to be
closer portion in the next 5 years. Long-term revenue from the golf course,
buildings for rent and such new businesses as factory and warehouse buildings
for rent (Prospect Development) and Park Court Apartment for the up-market
and foreigners who stay or work in Thailand.
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Product / Service

VNI, AUAILANZNIT
M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

NN DTINIHNTNG
Real Estate Development

VA, LHUADU
Mancon Co., Ltd.

S"uﬂ Una. FunAnzma
Other M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

VA, LHWADY 95.50

Mancon Co., Ltd.

U3, WIDRWA ALAADLLHUA 100.00

Prospect Development Co.,Ltd.

334 / Total
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(Kuo® : wuun / Unit : Thousand Baht)

2556 /2013 2557 / 2014 2558 / 2015

2,677,477 95.69 2,268,799 95.13 3,649,509 91.32

95.50

120,653 4.31 116,098 4.87 347,010 8.68

2,798,130 100 2,384,897 100 3,996,519 100
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Other revenues consist of : Building’s rent, Warehouses and factory, Golf Course, etc. Each item valued not exceed 10% of consolidated total revenues.

uSGna douldidaluusinsondoli / The Equity in net income (loss) in Associated companies
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Subnorasing Co., Ltd.

(U3By Daviu 36.07%)
(M.K. Shareholding 36.07%)
USHN TARTINUA a1dn
Samakkee Cement Co., Ltd.

(U3tny Daviu 40.64%)
(M.K. Shareholding 40.64%)

(Kuo® : uIn / Unit : Baht)

| 2556 / 2013 | 2557 / 2014

2558 / 2015
49,054 19,859 (2,075,471)
(12,472,227) (15,763,118) (13,109,985)
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Note : In October 2015, the Company made the investment in Prospect Development Co., Ltd. its principal activities are develop and provide rental service of warehouse and factory,
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Product, Marketing & Competition and Procurement of
Significant Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Products

Eighteen residential projects opened since 2015 feature detached
houses, twin houses and townhouses under the name of “ChuanChuen”
and “Serene House” as well as condominiums under the name of “August”
has been revived to meet every sector of customers’ needs.

In terms of real estate for rent, MK has office buildings and sport
complexes for rent in addition to the ChuanChuen Golf Club, an 18-hole
golf course with a clubhouse and driving range on Bangkok-PathumThani
Road. In 2015, a new project, Bangkok Free Trade Zone, was initiated as
an industrial and logistics center on 1,000 rai of land , 300 rai of which have
been developed as public utilities and the other 700 rai will be developed
for commercial purposes - factory and warehouse buildings for rent in a
General Zone and Free Zone. Today, some 130,000 square meters have
been built and ready for rent. More than 90% of the factory and warehouse
buildings have been rent out due to such attractive privileges as tax benefits
from the Board of Investment (BOI), Customs Department and being the
purple zone, in which corporate income tax, import and export duties will
be exempt for entrepreneurs importing raw materials to produce products
for domestic and overseas markets. Those privileges and best locations
are favorable to MK factory and warehouse buildings for rent. Furthermore,
the project site is in the best logistic zone on Bangna-Trat Road, only 17
kilometer from Suvarnabhumi International Airport, 23 kilometers from

Bangkok Port, 90 kilometers from LaemChabang deep-sea Port or
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60 minutes’ drive. It's the best strategic location for logistics and distribution
in the Kingdom and worldwide.

MK also plans to develop the first ever apartment for rent, Park Court,
located in SoiSukhumvit 77 (On Nut). The apartment will feature 70 units.
Aunitfeatures 3 bedrooms 3 WC. with space of 260 square meters parking
facilities for 170 cars. MK foresees positive opportunities for the apartment
forrent as an international school, Bangkok Prep will be built exactly across
the road from MK’s Park Court, which will therefore serve the foreigners’
family who will have their children attend the Bangkok Prep. In addition, a
lot of foreign businessmen who work in the Sukhumvit zone. In addition to
the favorable location and easy access from BTS Onnut station, or Express
Way Sukhumvit 50 exit, or from Sukhumvit Soi 71 and 77, and also easy
to go to Suvarnnabhum Airport. Park Court will feature a large park and
a wide variety of facilities, including but not limited to a swimming pool,
a fitness center, space for a family party for them to really to enjoy life in
the Park Court.

An MK subsidiary, ManCon Co., Ltd. is involved with contracting
construction and development of small real estate projects. Other affiliates
include Samakkee Cement Co., Ltd., producing cement and finished
products; Sap Norasing Co., Ltd., engaged with the sand industry; Prospect
Development Co., Ltd., development factory and warehouse buildings for
rent; and S71 Holding Co., Ltd., investing in other real estate companies.

MK will hold on to its main products - building houses before sales
to meet customers’ demand to move in and live right away. In 2016,
construction will be innovated with semi-finished or prefab houses along
with the traditional construction procedures, which will tremendously
shorten construction time, thus cutting down labor problems, construction
costs while enhancing competitive edges. “Value for Money” is the key
message to clients, who can afford a house at averaged prices of Bt 2.0-
5.0 million. Most clients have purchased as their own residences. That's
why there is no risk for MK to rely on a particular sector. Most clients are
medium-income earners, 30-50 years of age, working in the private sector
or running their own businesses. In terms of channel of distribution, direct
sales will continue to lead, having a sales office at each jobsite and at the
headquarters. Known Brand name will be reiterated and a new marketing
channel, online communication will be introduced to reach new customer
base. MK will also focus holding customer relationship or CRM activities
for buyers as after-sales activities under the concept of “secure family”
to promote family relationship and impressive living community, thus
strengthening customer base for future businesses.

MK is planning to open 5 quality residential projects, worth some Bt
3.2 billion:

1. ChuanChuen Grand Ratchapruek, at Bt 8-10 million each, 110 units
or a total project value of Bt 1 billion.

2. ChuanChuen Grand Ekkachai-Bang Bon 4, at Bt8-10 million each, 93
units or a total project value of Bt700 million.

3. Two townhouse projects, at Bt2 million each, or a total project value
of Bt 500 million each.

4. Twin houses, at Bt4-5 million each, 100 units or a total project value
of Bt 500 million.

MK has set aside some budget to buy land for future developmentin its
land bank along with development of the current projects. By this way, MK
can maintain its costs and continuously generate income from residential

project development for sale.
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The Thai economy in 2015 grew by 2.8 percent, compared with 0.9
percent in the previous year due to a few favorable factors. In terms of the
residential industry, it's quite fluctuating in 2015. In the first quarter, the
market was quite slow due to political situations and economic uncertainties
as well as oversupply from the competitive construction of condominiums
in the past couple of years. The industry was worsened by credit rejections
of some 30%. Subsequently, the real estate developers had to stimulate
buyers’ decision. While the market was turning good in the latter half of the
year, the market got sluggish again after the news of real estate stimulus
package from the government. The situation became favorable in the last
quarter after the government had issued a real estate stimulus package
(Oct 19, 2015) through credit support to low-income earners and transfer
fee and mortgage fee reduction (until Apr 30, 2016). (Source: Real Estate
Direction 2016)

In terms of the residential sector, in 2015 opening of new residential
projects dropped by 5% to 107,990 units, compared with 114,094 units
in 2014 but the value of new residences rose by 26%, totaling Bt435.056
billion, an increase from Bt344.546 billion in 2014. Products most opened
to the market were at the price level of Bt2-3 million (31,497 units or 29%),
followed by Bt1-2 million (23%) and Bt3-5 million (19%). In terms of unit,
in 2015 some 103,642 units were sold, an increase by 13,007 units or
14% from 2014. Residences most sold were townhouses - 24,145 units,
an increase by 10,212 units or 60% from 2014 (Source: Agency for Real
Estate Affairs)

In terms of MK, in 2015 MK managed to close sales in 5 projects,
namely, ChuanChuen Rama Il, ChuanChuen Petchakasem, ChuanChuen
Brookside, Private Park ChuanChuen City, august Condominium Rama
[II-Charoenkrung, totaling 1,391 units worth Bt 4.35 billion. MK in 2015
opened 4 new projects on new locations but close to the current projects:
1. ChuanChuen Greenbound, a detached housing project of the contemporary

style in natural ambience. Residents may enjoy an 18-hole golf with

a fully-furnished ChuanChuen Clubhouse. The project features 216

units on 44-0-59.7 rai, worth Bt800 million.

2. Prime Park ChuanChuen City, another detached housing project on
SoiVatcharapol, featuring 141 units on 30-0-46.7 rai, worth Bt771
million. Outstanding attractions include its location on Vatcharapol
Road, where residents can get access from Vatcharapol Road or Soi
Ram-indra 65, easy to get access to the expressway amid shopping
centers, lifestyle malls on Vatcharapol Road, Ram-indra Road and
PraditManutham Road.

3. ChuanChuen Ekkachai-Bang Bon 4, located on an outstanding location
and attractive modern design for its own modern contemporary identity.
Each luxurious house features 100 square wah, totaling 93 units on
31-2-70 rai, worth Bt758 million.

4. Leon Sukhumvit 62, 3-story Townhomes in the European style, featuring
56 units on 6-1-2.7rai of land, worth Bt460 million, situated in the
best location, easy to get access and just 200 meters to the entrance
to the expressway on Sukhumvit 62 and just 1 km from the Bang
Chak BTS Station, right at the mouth of SoiSukhumvit 62. In terms
of access, it's as easy as condominiums on Sukhumvit Road but in
terms of value for money and utilization space, this project is much
better than a condominium.
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Trend of Industry and Competition
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- GDP (assgnalyneg) / GDP (Thai economy)

- Export (U3unmmsasannaudiuazuinia) / Export (Export volume of goods and services)

- Inflation (5&15’]@%1,‘1;1@“;];’;1‘1” / Inflation (general inflation)

- Interest Rate (5@31@anLﬁauIﬂu1ﬂ) / Repurchase rate

Thailand’s economic condition in 2015 grew up by 2.8%, accelerating
from the previous year by 0.9 %, driven primarily by government investments
which is expected to increase continuously, and boosting tourism sector.
Private consumption is likely to recover from the previous year gradually
by favorable impact of government’s supporting measures coupled with
inflation and constant reduce of oil price. However, as a result of global
economic downturn, especially among major business partners of Thailand,
the amount of export and services fell below the forecast (-5.8%). The
inflation rate in 2015 stood at -0.9 %, decreased from the previous year

following significant drop of oil and commodity prices in the global market.

il 2558 / 1 2559 (Uszanmnis)
Year 2015 Year 2016 (estimated)
2.8% 37% [3.2-4.2%)
-5.8% 2 -3%
0.9% 0.3% [-0.2-0.8%]
1.5% 1.5%

i3 : deing1weananisaas / Source: Fiscal Policy Office
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According to the forecast by Fiscal Policy Office, Thai economy in 2015
is likely to grow steadily as a result of government’s supporting measures
such as the project to strengthen foundation economy under the civil state
approach where the government provide maximum 500,000 baht to each
fund for total 79,556 funds to regional villages and urban communities,
total amount is 35,000 million baht. As a result, Thai economy in 2016
is expected to grow by 3.7 % (estimation ranged between 3.2-4.2%). In
addition, it is expected to be more government investments especially
related to mega infrastructure projects of transport and logistics, and
the escalation of budget approved for investment in 2016 what allow to
stabilize the country. The general inflation rate in 2016 is estimated at 0.3%
(estimation range between -0.2 to 0.8) which is still low following energy
price which eases the pressure on capital cost.

Nonetheless, Thai economy has to be aware of risk factors such as
the slow recovery of the world and Chinese economy, the volatility of oil
prices in the world market and delay of infrastructure investment which is
worth 1.79 billion baht.

For the real estate sector in year 2015, according to data from the
recent Research and Real Estate Assessment Agency For Real Estate
Affairs (AREA), it is briefed that Products which are launched the most in
terms of price is the housing cost between 2-3 million baht (31,497 units
or 29%), followed by housing cost between 1-2 million baht (23%) and
housing cost between 3-5 million baht (19%). The product price lower than
a million is rarely launched and it accounted only 10% of the market while
the products in which the price exceeding 10 million baht amounted to only
5% of the market (but the portion is accounted at 28% of the market).
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The number and value of residential development categorized by prices in year 2014, 2015 and 2016 (estimation)

7191218 i af1 (§1u171) / Value (Million baht)

(8mu1n) / B 4

Selling price waeuwlas/ | 2557/ | 2558/ | ulsewlas/ | 2559 F /

(Million baht) Changed 2014 2015 Changed | 2016 F

by % by %

9101 < 5 & 1ULM 100,114 87,668 -12% 81,531 7% 231,093 212,247 -8% 119,512 -6%
Price < 5 million baht
37101 5-10 &1ULN 11,625 14,902 28% 15,647 5% 76,687 98,897 29% 106,805 8%
Between 5-10 million
baht
3701 >10 @1UL N 2,355 5,420 130% 4,878 -10% 36,769 123,912 237% 117,097 -6%

Price >10 million baht

33 / Total 114,094 107,990 -5% 102,056 -5% 344,549 435,056 26% 423,418 -3%

N ey av A 1o a v e A ¢ a &
NN f}umagmaﬂu,a:m:wwmaawmmiwzjvlm VAN LDLAUT WDT LILALDFLAN LOWLNIE (www.area.co.th) /
Source: Research and Real Estate Assessment Agency For Real Estate Affairs (www.area.co.th)

mMafusanalasasUinnunbengldl 2558 wiiiy 103,642 e Overall sales volume of year 2015 was equal to 103,642 units, increased

WANAuantl 2557 11w 13,007 Wiae wae 14% by 13,007 units or 14% from year 2014.

a
agtsaameuanansznn (i) / \asuuiag / Change

2557 / 2014 2558 / 2015
The sales breakdown by type (units) %

- ‘ﬁmtﬁ'm / Single house 12,467 12,118 -349 -3%
- M13TEs / Townhouse 16,933 27,145 10,212 60%
- q7‘1EN°1.1®/Condominium 44722 59,020 14,298 32%
- SW] / Others 16,513 5,358 -11,154 -67%
33 / Total 90,635 103,642 13,007 14%
Uvguonna:aul 2559 Positive and negative factors in 2016
Tadaay laun Negative factors include:
1. mmﬁﬂamaﬂmnwmaam MEnaaseanuazLilnAanas d9RalFINA 1. Theeconomic situation remains in recession while export and consumption
mimaamimaﬂamawaﬂmﬂﬂ are fallen resulting in delay of decision making in buying a houses.
2. mamama\muﬂmﬁ@m mﬂma‘"immﬁluwamﬁi‘“aﬁuﬁgﬂ“ﬁ% IoH 2. Shrinking of purchasing power as a consequence of increasing daily
mﬁmumuiawmaam mla\‘l expenditure and household debt remains high.
mu‘wummﬂﬂumiwmmm 3. High cost of land development.
@“ﬁumwL’ﬂaﬂmaﬂﬁinﬂumumm Wﬂaﬂ‘ﬂs‘umaﬂm 4. The gradual decline of confidence index in businesses.
ﬁt:gmnmlm awalwawa@rmqmimwma@m mwmmmm‘éwqu 5. Drought issue which reduces agricultural productivity, lack of working
%Huﬁfﬂu capital among agriculturists.
fadzuan loun Positive factors include:
1. é’mmaﬂLﬁﬂmﬁﬁaafﬂm”ﬁuﬁw 1. Interest rates remain low.
2. mmmiﬂi“@uaaﬂmiwswmaﬂmﬂ'ﬁ (A1UN1S aAA1TTTHHEN 2. Government stimulus measures (tax, reduction of transfer and mortgage
MslaulazNITanaues yay) Lmﬂvl,@ﬁ?lﬂml,wmnawLml,a‘ia fees, etc.), but this only benefits the completed transactions.
3. mimmmﬂlmmﬂﬂmmmﬂﬁ miﬂ@muwmimu LADIARNANTS 3. Mega project investment of government which the result will be shown
MUANINGNTE Wmm mmu inalong term. However, it may have psychological effect at a certain level.
4. iﬂmaaﬂmwmwwa@ﬁxm@tﬂmmmmmﬂa Lﬂﬂauluﬂmﬂﬁﬂmlfﬁilu 4. The price of real estates in Thailand are cheaper than other ASEAN
Lmwmwﬁmmmﬂmiwaﬂﬂmwﬂﬁvlmvl,@34mmmsﬁamnm countries, butdue to the political issue, not many investors would purchase.
5. mMaia AEC mlwnnmﬂ’mwL")nmsnaammimwaLwam‘iaﬂmﬁﬂ 5. The official launch of AEC will attract more foreigners to buy real estate
A miawumnmu for housing and investing.
6. miamﬁL@uﬂmiamuﬂmmﬂ 25 RITRLY maatw&m RESTRY (LiN 6. Reduction of deposit insurance from 25 million to 1 million (start from
1 W.2.59) ‘Vl'ﬂfw34ﬂwumawwﬁaammwmwamnmu 1 November 2016) will attract more properties buyers.
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3. aowidgodumsidu (Financial Risk)
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1. Business Risk

The supply in real estate business remained high, while consumers
were more reluctant to buy properties than during the past few years as
a result of high household debt and sluggish economic situation which
decrease confidence among consumers. Commercial banks still maintained
strict procedure for granting housing loan for individual. Nonetheless, with
the government both monetary and fiscal measures imposed to boost real
estate sector during the fourth quarter, including more visible government
investments for year 2015, low oil price and interest rates, were all contributed
to the supporting factors of purchasing power in housing industry.

For the management of risks in the business operation, the Company has
deployed strategy to grow both real estate for sales and for rent, including
related services. It is expected that in the next 5 years, the income ratio of
both businesses should be similar. In addition, the Company continues to
focus on managing inventories (pre-built houses) building new units only
to replace the sold ones in order to control the stock at a proper.

2. Production Risk

Mega Projects from the government are considered a driving force for
the economy; however, the projects might lead to shortage of labor. To
cope with this risk, the Company has implemented pre-fabrication system
for its 3 storey-town house construction to reduce dependency on labor,
as well as to shorten time in construction. The town house perfectly suit
the pre-fabrication system as it has favor design varieties comparing to
single and semi-detached houses. In regard to single/semi-detached
houses, the important factor is to balance between supply and demand,
especially in the situation where the purchasing power is getting weaker,
while continuing to feed works to our high-quality contractors. Meanwhile,
there remain risks in finding new land plots in good locations at reasonable
prices.
3. Financial Risk

During the stagnanteconomy, financial health and cash flow management
are considered the important factors for the real estate business, which
needs a high level of working capital in its operation. The company maintains
its financial strength by keeping its D/E ratio low at 0.76 times at the end
of 2015. Meanwhile, interest bearing debt was at Baht 2,879.29 million.
As such, the company’s financial health is considered strong and should
weather the currently slow economy, while being ready to expand once
the market turns positive.

For capital management, the Company concentrated on finding
source of low cost fund for operation. Regarding the management of the
Company's existing assets, the Company has set the procedures to convert
low performing assets into capital for investment in the business that can
generate stable and continued income to the Company in the long term.

s1evulsz91l 2558 9
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Shareholding Structure and Management

nangnorusielkny 10 dudunsn ru 2 SucAy 2558
Top 10 Shareholders’ Groups and of December 2™, 2015
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CRUTIT

No. of Shares Percentage of Total

1. UBS AG SINGAPORE BRANCH

2. UFEN Wik a7fe (NWIe) / Finansa Ple.

3. 135 @@ leads fa / CPD Holding Co., Ltd.
4. 5N naduifans a1a / Thai NVDR Co., Lid.
5. Mr. HENDRIK ROBERTUS CASTENDIJK

6. WigWALIsT YA / Mr. Philipvira Bunnag

7. wedifas 332N U / Mr. Wichien Jirakranont

8. Wn.BaT @ mawRving / Dr. Aurchart Kanjanapitak

av

9. wedsmt  51595@tt / Mr. Sirat  Thamrongrat

10. USHM I8187 wWSawwasd a11a / BCH Property Co.,Ltd.

119,150,000 12.01%
70,975,608 7.15%
60,000,000 6.05%
56,517,284 5.70%
38,000,200 3.83%
37,450,000 3.78%
32,171,000 3.24%
25,917,400 2.61%
24,746,000 2.49%
24,390,246 2.46%
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Management

Selection of Directors
The selection of persons to be appointed as a director depend on the

company’s regulations, detailed as follows:-

The Board of Directors must consists of no less than five members. At
least half of all directors must have residence in the Kingdom of Thailand.

The meeting of shareholders’ can vote for the directors in accordance
with the rules and methods, here in below.

1. Each shareholders’ votes equal to his/her number of shares, multiplied
by a number of directors to be elected.

2. The entire number of votes according to (1) of each shareholder must
be used for electing person(s) to be the director(s). In case of voting for
several candidates, votes can be variably divided among the candidates.

3. Thecandidates who receive the largest number of votes, in descending
order, will be elected the directors. In case that there is a tie among
candidates with an equal number of votes, the method of drawing lots
will be utilized to gain the proper number of directors.

In every annual general shareholders’ meeting, a-third of members
of the board of directors shall be retired by rotation. In the first year, the
directors with the longest continual serving will retire first, with the next-
longest serving directors retiring in the subsequent years. Directors who
are retired in this manner could be re-elected to resume the position. The
existing board of directors will continue to operate as an interim board as

necessary until the new board of directors assume the position.



[nsvasivovAns
Organization Chart

ANUNSSUNISUSHISADIIAED
Risk Management
Committee

AN:NSSUNISUSEN
Board of Directors

ALUNSSUNISUSHIS
Executive Committee

AQU:QJUSHISS:GUZD
Management Committee

nssumsgIams
Managing Director

N

MK REAL ESTATE

A:NSSUNISASIAU
Audit Committee

viuasavdaumelu
Internal Audit

AN:NSSUMSASSHI
Nomination Committee

AYIULIAT
Operations Management

| dhethyd
Accounting Department

Wy X
ARHIERTE
[~ Creditor Department

| dhamadu
Finance Department

AagIms
[~ Administration Department

| fheniwannsynaea
Human Resource Department

| damaluladansauina

SNURAITUH
Corporate Funding

heannSunu

Corporate Funding Department

Fhatinaenudaiug

Investor Relations Department

Information Technology Department

euinslasins
Project Management

aeUiaKgIia
Business Development

fhaiamngsiia
Business Development
Department

AUNNTINNT
Director Office

Ahgianymuisn
[~ Company Secretary
Department
| dhenadvady
Golf Club Department

fhafanIsuiiadens

~ CSR Department

aenanlaseng AEMUANAUNNIATING
. . 9, 9
Project Development Quality Control and Cost
Division Estimatation Division
ﬂwﬂgﬂﬁﬁwﬂ’uﬁ Ahatszanmns
Customer Relations Cost Estimatation
Department Department
Aewainlasens hamuguaanIW
Project Development Quality Control
Department Department
Ahawannand MmN
Product Development
Department
| fheuiwisiuning
Asset Management Department
Angu3msanansuazAnnanfe

~ Property Management Department

FYVLUAZNITNAG
Sales and Marketing
Division

dhgana
Sales Department

AhamInana
Marketing Department

Ahelszanduiug
Public Relations Department

dhadanalasens

aeianssnuazlounssnans

Legal and Project

Transfering Support Division

RaifnaIx
Legal Department

dalaunssndnd
Project Transfering
Support Department

Projectﬂnformation Department

Medadalasenis
Project Procurement
Division

rhedndalasens

Project Procurement
Department

s1891uUs:910 2558 1 1
UGN BUAVIANENTS $1TA (LHTBL)



N

MK REAL ESTATE

goyamvmsivulagasUgooussn
Summary of Financial Information

ToyaaNeun1siu & andunansiuUSeuliiey 3 U/ Financial Information & Ratios

(Mg : WL / Unit : Thousand Baht)

83 2557 % wasuuay 2557 —» 2558
DESCRIPTION 2014 % Change 2014 — 2015

wamsautuviu / OPERATING RESULTS

578l#ann13une / Sales Revenue 2,759,707 2,346,885 3,749,882 59.78
37¢1¢92u / Total Revenues 2,798,130 2,384,897 3,996,519 67.58
é}'unmmxﬂ'ﬂ%ﬂ‘miw / Total Costs and Expenses 2,355,892 1,920,755 3,352,966 74.56
rils (11A1) Fué / Gross Profit (Loss) 949,283 955269 1,140,848 19.43
lsaviseoufifuanuis / Profit - Owners of the Company 428,561 447,332 626,715 40.10

guzmsiou / FINANCIAL POSITION

FunSwésiy / Total Assets 6,782,618 7,361,252 11,677,557 58.64
wilausan / Total Liabilities 1,502,788 1,891,387 5,039,827 166.46
daupa9ffiavin / Shareholders’ Equity 5,279,830 5,469,865 6,637,730 21.35
fUA1AINAD / Inventories 5,686,982 6,356,831 6,078,107 (4.38)

Joyadoriu (un) / PER SHARE (Baht)

s (1anu) gndradiu / Net Profit (Loss) Per Share 0.50 0.52 0.71* =
Wutlunasiayi / Dividend Per Share 0.20 0.30 0.25 (16.67)
yasawinyFdarin / Book Value Per Share 6.14 6.36 6.69 5.25
aasidounvmsiou (Sowa:) / FINANCIAL RATIO (%) Wagi9 / Difference
5@1?’171"71‘5%%5% / Gross Profit Margin 34.40 40.70 30.42 (10.28)
dns1rinlsqn3 / Net Profit Margin 15.32 18.76 15.68 (3.08)
dnTNanauLnugta¥in / Retum on Equity 8.32 8.32 10.35 2.03
anIE@NwWaaad (111) / Current Ratio (times) 4.81 7.95 253 (5.42)
é’mwdawﬁﬁu@iadmmaqﬁﬁaﬁu (i) / 0.28 0.35 0.76 0.41

Debt to Equity Ratio (times)

v

* e © ldsnuiuiimdetnimin
* Note : Calculating by the weighted average of the shares
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Graph of Financial Information

FunSwYSOU la:KUTUSOU (Total Assets & Total Liabilities)

&1uu1m / Million Baht

11,687 o .
. AUNTNETIN /
7,361 Total Assets
6.783 wilAusan /
’ Total Liabilities
5,040
1,891
1,503

2556 / 2013 2557 | 2014 2558 / 2015

s19lasou, S181ANNISYIY (Total Revenues, Sales Revenue)

#11um / Million Baht
s1wlaanmsy1e / Sales Revenue s1ulasou / Total Revenues

3,997
3,750

2,798
2,760

2,347 2,385

(L
By

L

1L
L

IR

2556 / 2013 2557 / 2014 2558 / 2015 2556 / 2013 2557 / 2014 2558 / 2015

M P
a-| a-| a-|

2556 / 2013 2557 | 2014 2558 / 2015

#1uu1m / Million Baht

misans (Net Profit)
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Board of Directors and Advisors M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PCL.

ueginw  OVAISIASYY gij;:'::wmi wwosans Inmdeuicud pe
Mr. Suthep Wongvorazathe Mr. Vorasit Pokachaiyapat
wedlauds: yuunn s uasm asluas MmN
Mr. Philipvira Bunnag prrector Mrs. Sutida Suriyodorn Director
|
[ . .
wanossti uRaiazna g?s“mi weAnaAsS wodisssuna gﬁwms
Miss Rachanee Mahatdetkul (It Mr. Saksri Phurthamkul rector
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s1evuls:91U 2558 1 5
USGN JuAvIAKENTS SR (UKIBL)



N

MK REAL ESTATE

AJISU@QYOUCDaLAN
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
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CSR Policy

1. Fair business : The Company’s business operation shall be of high
integrity, fairness and traceability. The Company shall not do anything
in violation of the intellectual property.

2. Anti-corruption : The Company and its subsidiaries shall not be involved
with corruption. The Company has made clear its anti-corruption policy.

3. Realization of the stakeholders’ role : The Company shall maintain
the stakeholders’ interest through compliance with its code of conduct
towards its clients, trading partners, employees and the society.

4. Fair labor treatment : To promote and support employees to receive
fair benefits and welfare packages, the Company is paying proper
remuneration to its employees in line with the remuneration rates in
the same industry in addition to such welfare benefits as annual health
check, annual excursion tour, annual staff's party, etc. The Company
also provides training opportunities for long-term human resource
development for employees to develop themselves. Average training
hours per employee each year have been made known openly.

5. Compliance with the law, rules and other related regulations concerning
the Company’s business operation environment.

6. Safety and occupational health in the workplace has been setas a policy
and procedure with a goal of zero accident, a significant organizational
goal.

7. Promoting the initiatives of continuous social and environmental projects
or activities on an annual basis to promote participation in social and
community development.

8. Promoting social knowledge and environmental conservation to every
level of employees as a guideline for them to develop and be responsible
for society and environment.

Compliance with the CSR policy

1. In 2015, the Company recorded no legal offenses and/or violation of
the intellectual property.

2. The Company announced its anti-corruption policies to its employees
and posted in its website www.mk.co.th and the employees joined the
collective action coalition with the private sector in fighting against
corruption.

3. The Company prepared Code of Ethics and made it known among the
management and staff to practice towards clients, trading partners,
creditors, competitions, employees and the society as well as posted
in its website.mk.co.th and printed in the manual for the Board of
Directors and distributed to every Director.

4. Personnel training in 2015
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The Company strictly complied with the law, rules and regulations. The
Company received no complaints or accusations of legal offenses or
against any rules or regulations.

In 2015, the Company recorded zero accident. Not a single employee
lost his/her life or was injured in an accident at work.

Social activities in 2015

Participation in social and community development :

« On May 10, 2015, MK took some 70 children from “Chuan Chuen”
and “Serene House” projects to join a learning development activity
for the youth in the 17th MK Sunday Together program at Samphran
Riverside Resort, Nakhon Pathom Province.

. 15/11/58 Sungy siduwdhmnnaaniumied lasngagiads
TN 5550LazSuanyny 99,990.-un Tunsandanssidasnaden
gor luszm ganwonaamalioy o Taadduas 29uia
WIZUATPATDYDEN

*  OnNovember 15,2015, MK co-hosted a ceremony to offer saffron
robes to monks and Bt99,990 cash for the temple to buy roof
tiles, gable apex, ridges and repair the pavilion in Chedi Daeng
Temple, Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya Province.
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2. Natural resource conservation and rehabilitation :

On July 30, 2015, MK took its management and staff to grow coral
to maintain natural balance for them to learn the ecology and
realize marine environmental problems at Thalu Island, Prachuap
Khiri Khan Province.

3. Social investment :

On July 29, 2015, MK took its management and staff to present
some Bt300,000 to Watkhao RatBamrung School, PrachuapKhiri
Khan Province to repair the school buildings and purchase
computer and learning kits as part of social contributions and
educational support in the program called, MK Sharing Happiness
with Youngsters.

On December 19, 2015, MK took its management and staff to
offer lunch and scholarships for some 60 children of the daily-
paid workers and organize games for brain development at
Chuan Chuen Golf Club, Pathum Thani Province as part of the
MK Sharing Happiness with Youngsters.

8. Activities to implant into employees realization of environmental

conservation and social responsibilities, for instance, coral growing

for natural rehabilitation and to grow mangrove forests as part of

the natural and environmental conservation. Those projects will
be conducted jointly with the Company’s stakeholders, etc.
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MK REAL ESTATE

1. Mr. Suthep Wongvorazathe
Chairman 67 Year

Appointed as Director

« June 15", 2015

No. of Shares 177,550,000 Shares (17.90%)

Education

* Master's Degree / MBA, University of Wisconsin, U.S.A.

Director Certification Program

« DAP 48/2005

Experience 5 Years
2015-Present
2013-Present

Chairman, M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
Chairman, Seamico Securities Plc
2014-Present Executive Chairman, KT Zmico Securities Company Ltd.

2011-Present
2011-Present

Chairman, Khonburi Sugar Company Limited

Directors and Chairman of Audit Committee,
Chumporn Palm Qil Industry Plc.

Director, Bangchak Petroleum Public Company Limited
Director, Asia Kangnam Company Limited

2012-Present
2009-Present

2010-2011 Chairman of the Executive Board,
Export-Import Bank of Thailand
2009-2011 Director, Board of Investment Thailand

2. Mr. Vorasit Pokachaiyapat
Director / Executive Director and Acting Managing Director /

Chairman of Risk Management Committee 52 Year

Appointed as Director

« October 26", 2015

No. of Shares - Shares

Education

» Master’s Degree/M.S. Computer Information Systems Bentley College, U.S.A
Director Certification Program

« DCP 2002 (I0D)

Experience 5 Years

Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
Managing Director, Finansa Plc.
Director, Finansa Capital Limited
Director, Finansa Fund Management Ltd.
Director, Prospect Development Co., Ltd.
Independent Director, SE-Education Plc.
2011-2015 Director, Chaiyanan Service Group Co., Ltd.
2011-2015 Director, PRO-M Co., Ltd.
2011-2015 Director, Finansa Asset Management Ltd.

s1evulsz91l 2558 1 9
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3. Mrs. Sutida Suriyodorn
Director / Executive Director / Risk Management Committee Member /
Senior Executive Vice President-Operations Management 53 Year

Appointed as Director
« June 15", 2015
No. of Shares - Shares

Education

¢ Master’'s Degree / MBA, Thammasat University

¢ Master's Degree / M.Econ., University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
Director Certification Program

Experience 5 Years
Present

2011-2015

M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
Deputy of Managing Director - Chief Operating Officer
Finansa Asset Management Ltd.

4. Miss Rachanee Mahatdetkul
Director / Executive Director /
Risk Management Committee Member 49 Year

Appointed as Director

« October 26", 2015

No. of Shares - Shares

Education

¢ Master's Degree / MBA, Santa Clara University, U.S.A

Director Certification Program

* DAP 2005

Experience 5 Years

Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
Senior Vice President of Direct Investment, Finansa Plc.
Director, Finansa Capital Limited
Director, Prospect Development Co., Ltd.

2011-2015 Director, Chaiyanan Service Group Co., Ltd.

2011-2015 Director, PRO-M Co., Ltd.

5. Mr. Philipvira Bunnag
Director / Executive Director 52 Year

Appointed as Director

« June 15", 2015

No. of Shares 37,450,000 Shares (3.78%)

Education

¢ Bachelor's Degree / International University, UK

Director Certification Program

Experience 5 Years

Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

Director, Prospect Development Co., Ltd.

Director of Advertising and Promotion -

Thai Airways International Plc.

2011-2012

6. Mr. Saksri Phurthamkul

Director 77 Year

Appointed as Director

* in 1999

No. of Shares - Shares

Education

» Bachelor’s Degree / Laws, Thammasat University
Director Certification Program

» DAP 68/2008 (IOD)

Experience 5 Years

2011-Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
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7. Mr. Nuttplusthrone Nonthachit
Director / Executive Vice President - Director Office /
Company Secretary 59 Year

Appointed as Director

* in 1993

No. of Shares 864 shares (0.0001%)

Education

» Bachelor's Degree / Accountancy, Ramkhamhaeng University

¢ Mini MBA, Thammasat University

Director Certification Program

» DAP 5/2003 , DCP 42/2004 (IOD)

Experience 5 Years

Present

2011-2015

Director, Prospect Development Co., Ltd.
Director, M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

8. Mr. Att Asavanund
Independent Director / Chairman of Audit Committee /
Chairman of Remuneration Committee /
Chairman of Nomination Committee 42 Year
Appointed as Director
« June 15", 2015
No. of Shares - shares
Education
» Master's Degree / MBA, SASIN Graduate Institute of Business Administration,
Chulalongkorn University
Director Certification Program
Experience 5 Years
Present
2015-Present

M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

Chief Operating Office, Donaco Entertainment and
Marketing (Thailand) Company Limited
2014-2015
2014-Present
2014-Present
2013-Present
2013-2014

Director, Chaswood Resource (Thailand) Company Limited
Director, Attilan Group Limited

Director, Mazda Chonburi Company Limited

Director, Infinite Capital Company Limited

Chief Financial Office, Beyond Green Company Limited

9. Mr. Chaiyapont Timsootheepant
Independent Director / Audit Committee Member / Remuneration Committee
Member / Nomination Committee Member 61 Year

Appointed as Director

« June 15", 2015

No. of Shares - shares

Education

* Master's Degree / Arts Program in Social Development, National Institute of
Development Administration (NIDA)

Director Certification Program

Experience 5 Years

Present

2011-2014

M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
Election Officials, Office of the Election Commission
of Thailand
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10. Mrs. Malai Rachataswan
Independent Director / Audit Committee Member / Remuneration Committee
Member / Nomination Committee Member

60 Year
Appointed as Director
o April 28", 2015
No. of Shares - Shares
Education
» Bachelor's Degree / Science, Mahidol University
Director Certification Program
Experience 5 Years
Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
2011-Present Executive Directors and Managing Director,
The Peace Canning (1958) Company Limited.
2011-Present Executive Directors and Managing Director,
FB Food Service Company Limited.
2011-Present Directors, Pattaya Food Industries Limited.
11. Miss Dusadee Tancharoen
Risk Management Committee Member / Senior Executive Vice
President - Project Management 44 Year
Appointed as Director
No. of Shares - Shares
Education
» Bachelor’s Degree / Arts, Chulalongkorn University
Director Certification Program
Experience 5 Years
Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
2011-2015 Senior Vice President, Sansiri Public Co., Ltd.
12. Mr. Sakdina Manlerd
Risk Management Committee Member /
Executive Vice President - Project Development Division 67 Vegr

Appointed as Director
No. of Shares - Shares

Education

» Bachelor’'s Degree, Engineering, Kasetsart University
Director Certification Program

Experience 5 Years
Present

2011-2015

M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
Senior Vice President, Sansiri Public Co., Ltd.
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13. Mr. Ratchaphong Chaemthiraphan
Executive Vice President - Quality Control and
Cost Estimatation Division 76 Year

Appointed as Director

No. of Shares 618,504 Shares (0.06%)

Education

 High School

Director Certification Program

Experience 5 Years

2011-Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

14. Miss Napaporn Kamonsakdavikul
Executive Vice President - Legal and Project

Transfering Support Division 56 Year

Appointed as Director
No. of Shares - Shares

Education

» Bachelor’s Degree / Laws, Thammasat University
Director Certification Program

» DAP 20/2004 (IOD)
Experience 5 Years
Present

2011-2015

Director, Prospect Development Co., Ltd.
Director, M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

15. Mr. Suthep Kittiwatcharapong

Executive Vice President - Project Procurement Division 54 Year

Appointed as Director

No. of Shares 103,376 Shares (0.01%)

Education

» Bachelor’s Degree / Laws, Thammasat University
Director Certification Program

» DAP 120/2015 (IOD)

Experience 5 Years

2011-Present M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.

16. Miss Pornphan Yantossilp
Executive Vice President - Business Development 45 Year

Appointed as Director

No. of Shares - Shares

Education

» Master's Degree/ EMBA, SASIN Graduate Institute of Business Administration,
Chulalongkorn University

Director Certification Program

Experience 5 Years

Present

2011-2015

M.K. Real Estate Development Plc.
Tharntat Co., Ltd.
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A10DUIINUGUSHIS /| MSUS:3UAN:NSSUNISUSEN
Management Remuneration / Board of Directors’s Meeting

1. masunnuidudoou  Monetary Remuneration
AmauunuluzusnIINNITUIEN Director's Remuneration

. msunsaNlsEaN
ANRDUUNWIIN Total of meetings
N

I8ADAMSNIINANT Director’s Name otal NIINNIT
WN AAFDU

RNELRA
Remark’

! Audit
Directors | Committee

Aru=nssumsyaidu Old Board of Directors

1 WU AINATIIN Mr. Chuan Tangmatitham 295,000.00 4/4 - aoan 16/6/2558
2 WOt FINATITH Mrs. Anchan Tangmatitham 275,000.00 4/4 - Resigned as of 16/6/2015
3 WYNBN TING BN Mr. Kasem Thurakisna 305,000.00 3/3 2/2
4 wnewTil GERRIERM Mr. Sanan Srirungrojana 280,000.00 3/3 -
o= = . anaan 15/6/2558
5  weauua a%umn{ ) Mr. Anan Ahandrilk 300,000.00 3/3 2/2 Resigned as of 15/6/2015
6 @3de anIasiaiing  Dr. Ping Kunawatsatit 275,000.00 3/3 -
7 wemied  AwAsT Mr. Chukiat Tangmatitham 265,000.00 3/3 -
_ 2 - anaan 16/6/2558
8  UNENYANT  AINADITH Miss Chutima Tangmatitham 285,000.00 4/4 - Resigned as of 16/6/2015
9 ma‘ﬂ%éﬁr qimﬁ% Mr. Pree Buranasiri 265,000.00 2/2 11 ATUINITZNITNNIT L4.8.58
Retired by rotation as of April 2015
10 WuDigwass  uunand Mr. Nuttplusthrone Nonthachit 385,000.00 4/4 - 1ESumsRenss w658
11 wednds  wollsssuga  Mr. Saksri Phurthamkul 385,000.00 4/4 N R
12 W9ENIUNWT NuaFNeNIna  Miss Napapomn Kamonsakdavikul ~ 315,000.00 7/8 - 1¢5umsnaasy 1a.e.58
anean13/8/58

Appoint to renewal in April 2015 /
Resigned as of 13/8/2015

Aruznssumsyadeyuu New Board of Directors

1 wegnw ’J\iﬁ’)ilﬂ‘é‘]&@ Mr. Suthep Wongvorazathe 165,000.00 11/11 -
2 weWdldz  yuwe Mr. Philipvira Bunnag 110,000.00  11/11 - .
= o . . 1#5unsusiess 15/6/2558
3 Wga qﬂmi Mrs. Sutida Suriyodorn 90,000.00 9/11 - Appointed in 15/6/2015
v o C% Cd
4 wgaga AFINUUN Mr. Att Asavanund 120,000.00 9/11 2/2
5  wefHana fingdnus Mr. Chaiyapont ~ Timsootheepant ~ 130,000.00  11/11 2/2
6  WeTEN3 Inandawaii  Mr. Vorasit Pokachaiyapat 30,000.00 313 - &% msusess 26/10/58
7 weamieil  wdaeana Miss Rachanee  Mahatdetkul 30,000.00 3/3 N
L a & .
8 Wlf;lmgtmﬁi UUNIANA Mr. Nuttplusthrone  Nonthachit = 11/11 = 1 E21N156199152 118,58
9 wwénfes  wo@sIINOR  Mr. Saksri Phurthamkul s 1111 [Pl A
10 W9NIae So08336 Mrs. Malai Rachataswan 100,000.00  8/13 23 léSumsussas a.e.58
Appointed in April 2015
v
NwIuATIvaINsLlazautl 2558 / Total number of meetings in 2015 15 4
HNEUNG - 1 ﬂ'mauuwumwmmg’luﬁhﬁuﬂﬂygﬁ wazundanssnns ) Remark : 1. Director's Remuneration is Meeting Allowance and Director’s Annual Payment
2. mauuyusINAIna i ana ey sz nnasnsunIiasve oy NI TR 0% U 2. The total Director’s Remuneration is included the additional meeting Allowance which will be
nanliudadruan 585,000 v ) approved in the amount of 585,000 Baht subject to the shareholder meeting.
3. msuslagonsnnslnamaunusnangsNN 137 198y, muderiduvesuien de 17. 3. The new director appointment replaced vacancy on the Board of Directors according to the
4. a3 yIouds asumszeiuiinssuns Aeldusdonssumslua fo gmsnsy Article 17 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
TYNAITIA LADINIYY 2558 4. Mr. Pree Buranasiri had to retire by rotation in 2015 and the Meeting approved to appoint

a new director, Mrs. Malai Rachataswan, to replace a retired director in April, 2015.
AoUNNUIUYIUNSSUNMSUSHISIIA:QUSHIS / Executive’s Remuneration

e o Poron | i Amonun

SPTCR Salary 17 16,896,453.00
Tusia Bonus 17 38,877,302.00
Ruihwiiaaneiiaanaanainguw 4 21,335435.00
AADLUNUDU (AN IUZLAZEIdAN1T)  Other Remuneration (Car Allowance and welfare) 17 3,027,111.22
U Total 17 80,136,301.22

yaEg: Fuinsiiman 4 v Iasuduiwiaderiuainmaduwinegesieny sudasanainaiaon emdeulouazdatedunisiidrewiinem
Note : After resignation, the 4 executives receive pension under employment terms and conditions.

2. Alasunnudu (i) 2. Other Remuneration

andTaviu visgnanniwdau  -lafl- Stock option - None -

NoINUEITDILALITN Sladd- Provident Fund - None - ‘ ,

A o & aoa ) oo S o Retired Payment (Management) : Depend on no of working years which
WUUIAUA(HUIAIT) © AIHDIZIUNNIAUALUIT DI ULTENY are settled in Company ‘s Regulation
AHEAG © AUTAITMANEEY 5715%7ﬂ;%ﬂmfité/ﬂgﬂ?z/ﬂiiwfﬂigﬁhﬂWiTi’HZ?J Note: Executive refers to an executive position from assistant managing director onward,
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UdunnanusennoKudvidsosa: 10 Juld
Juristic Persons of which the Company’s Shareholding Exceeded 10%

U3EN

Companies

1. USHN anslARTLNUA anne

Samakkee Cement Co., Ltd.

Ao a = e o o
2. UIEN SUFUWIBNWENDIA INA

Sinsuk Properties Co., Ltd.

3. UIEN LNUADY 16

Mancon Co., Ltd.

4. 138 @3vlaad dfin

Duraflor Corp., Ltd.

5. USEN NIWIUIRIR ana

Subnorasing Co., Ltd.

6. USHN WIDAAA AARBULNUNA AT

Prospect Development Co., Ltd.

iszinnyaegna
Type of Business

AAENANTINFLINUA
Manufacturing-Cement
AFINITUNINE

Real Estate

SUNINBE5N9
Construction

2AFIVINIIN
Manufacturing

ATINNTTNNINEY
Manufacturing-Sand
W Laz AT AR I
Warehouses and leasing

7. USHN UTINANEY WAl a1na AFINTUNING
Buntudthong Pattana Co., Ltd. Real Estate

8. USHM 18 1@ 71 anm AFINITUNTNG
MK 71 Co., Ltd. Real Estate

9. USHM Laa 71 laads 41na DFITTHNTNE
S 71 Holding Co., Ltd. Real Estate

N

MK REAL ESTATE

Anudiszuan faviuiasaz o
Pai:i up Capital Perqcentage TET::;r):e IY'I:ZE::S
(At Par) of Ownership

235,000,000 40.64 0-2216-6646 0-2215-2266
200,000,000 15.00 0-2913-1717 0-2913-1717
20,000,000 95.50 0-2214-4543 0-2612-3492
55,000,000 15.26 0-2216-6620-9 0-2216-6634
18,000,000 36.07 0-2216-6600-18 0-2612-4557
1,200,000,000 100.00 0-2697-3860 0-2697-3869
1,000,000 100.00 0-2216-6600-18 0-2612-3492
1,000,000 100.00 0-2216-6600-18 0-2612-3492
1,100,000,000 85.45 0-2216-6600-18 0-2612-3492

v
o

A9dNEN9U (Office Address)

719 21e13HUAY AUUUITNONDY Lu29T9lna AUNH T NTIUNNHNILAT 10330

719 M.K. Building Bantadtong Road, Wang Mai, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330
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Control of Inside Information Exploitation
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The Company has a policy and practices to control the executives

regarding the exploitation of inside information for personal benefit, including

securities trading while the Company is being listed. Details are as follow:-

1.

Each executive will submit securities holding report of oneself, spouse

and juvenile children according to the relevantregulations. A copy of the

report is to be submitted to the Company on the same day that such

report is submitted to the SEC and SET in the following time frames :-

- Theinitial securities holding report (Form 59-1) within 30 days since
the public offering of the day appointed as executive.

- The report of change in securities holding (Form 59-2) within 3 days
of every transaction of securities trading of transfer.

The Company had amemorandum notifying executive that each executive
cognizant of internal information must refrain from company’s securities
trading, especially within 30 days before the announcement of operating
results (quarterly and annual financial statements) or any significant
disclosure to public which affects the stock price.

Maximum penalties would be imposed if any executive is found to have

exploited internal information or inclined to cause damage to the Company.
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Good Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors of M.K. Real Estate Development Public Company

Limited has implemented the policy to promote the company to be the efficient
company for business operations, have the good corporate governance, and
have good management by emphasizing on the maximization of benefits to
shareholders, stakeholders, committing to the moral principles and business
ethics, and disclosing the accurate, complete, and transparent information. The
company has identified the good corporate governance policy in order to be the
guidelines for the Board of Directors, executives, and employees as follows.

1. The Board of Directors, executives, and employees have committed to apply
the good corporate governance principle, namely,

« Shareholders’ right and treating shareholders with equality.

» Role of stakeholders and responsibilities of the Board of Directors.

« Reliability of information, disclosure of information, and transparency

» Good vision and organizational ethics.

into the business operations with the fair management structure among

Board of Directors, executives, shareholders, and stakeholders.

2. The Board of Directors has played an important role in identifying the strategy,
policy for business operations, and major company’s action plans by
considering from the risk factors, risk management policies, and setting the
efficient management guidelines. The Board of Directors must ensure that the
accounting system, financial report and auditing are accurate and reliable.

3. The Board of Directors has performed the duties with care, dedication, and
responsibilities. The Board must have leadership, vision, and freedom of
decision-making in order to maximize the company’s benefits and the overall
shareholders, and must implement the system to classify the clear and
separate roles, duties, and responsibilities between the Board of Directors
and the management, and among Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Chairman of Executive Board or Managing Director and the Chairman of the
Board of Directors must be mainly considered from independent directors.

4. The Board of Directors has identified the principle regarding the duties and
responsibilities, and moral principles, of company’s executives and employees
and such executives and employees must strictly follow according to the
principles. The Board of Directors must pay attention to customers and
must view customers as the important persons by delivering the qualified
and standardized products and pleasant after-sale services with honesty
and fairness.

5. TheBoard of Directors has considered the appointment of sub-committees as
appropriate in order to thoroughly and deliberately screen any works to
maximize the company’s benefits.

6. The company has disclosed the sufficient and reliable company’s financial
and non-financial data and information in a timely manner so the company’s
shareholders and stakeholders equally obtain data and information. The company
also has the unit responsible for giving information to investors and people.

7. The company’s shareholders must be treated with equality and have the right
to access the data and information, and proper channels for communicating
with the company. The company must also provide the channels for shareholders
to propose the name of directors before the annual ordinary meeting and
the channels for shareholders to propose the agenda that shall be considered in
the shareholders” meeting.

8. The Board of Directors has clearly identified the period for independent directors’
position.

9. TheBoard of Directors has identified the limitation of the number of companies
that each director is able to hold the director’s position and identified the
clear definition of independent directors’ qualifications. Each director is
able to hold the director’s position in the registered companies for no more
than 5 companies.
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10. The company has properly identified the procedures for selecting the qualified
personnel in order 1o be in the executive position and has the transparent
and fair nominating processes. The company has the policy to develop
the company’s personnel and continuously arrange the training in order to
strengthen more efficient personnel.

11. The Board of Directors must provide the annual performance evaluation in
order to be the framework for auditing how the Board of Directors perform
their duties.

12. The Company has appointed company secretary who will provide legal advice
and any relevant regulation that the broad should aware of, as well as
coordinating concerned departments to ensure that the board’s resolutions
and compliance to relevant regulations

13. The company has determined safety policy that will ensure employee’s welfare
and benefit which is indicated in resource manual regarding employee’s
welfare and benefit for example medical expense, benefit and pension for
retirement and resignation.

Corporate Governance Policies

The Board of Directors has identified the good corporate governance policies
since such policies are significant and necessary for the business operations
with stable growth. The Board has announced and identified the policies so the
executives and personnel realize and clearly perform according to such policies
by paying attention to transparency, improving the competitive advantage, and
creating the confidence among shareholders and stakeholders.

Rights of Shareholders and Stakeholders and Shareholders’ Meeting

In 2015, the company arranged shareholders’ meeting for 2 times at the
company. The company submitted the invitation letter and annual report with the
attachment according to the meeting agendas to shareholders 10 working days
in advance of the meeting. Each agenda must have the opinions of the Board
of Directors and accurate and complete meeting minutes so the shareholders
were auditable.

The company has paid attention to rights of stakeholders from company’s
employees, executives, customers, counterparties, creditors to government
agencies and relevant units since their supports help the company compete
and generate profit in order for the success in the long-run.

During the shareholders’ meeting in the year 2015, No. 1 the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2015 Held on 28 April 2015 The Company has
12 members of Board of Directors attended this meeting completely. No. 2 the
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders 1/2015 hold on Wednesday,
August 26, 2015 The Board features 8 Directors. One absentee was Mr. Att
Asavanund, Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee as
he’s engaged overseas. The Chairman of the meeting opened the opportunity
for shareholders to equally audit the company’s business operations, to inquire
and express their opinions and recommendations.

Internal Control and Internal Audit System

The Board of Directors has paid attention to the internal control system
as the important mechanism for mitigating the business risk and protecting the
properties so the financial reports are reliable and it can protect the investment of
company’s shareholders. Therefore, the Board has assigned the Audit Committee
to be responsible for providing the effective internal control system and managing
the risk at the proper level.

In 2015, the Board of Directors and independent auditors considered and
expressed their opinions that the company performed its duties according to
the specified procedures and did not find any major mistakes (see details in the
topic “internal control”).

Relationship with Investors

The company has disclosed the accurate, complete, and transparent financial
information and various information such as shareholding structure, risk factors,
related transactions, etc. to shareholders and relevant parties according to the

s1evulsz91l 2558 27

USGN JuAvIAKENTS SR (UKIBL)



lummamnawuawuﬁmﬂwmawmnjuammeiﬂiwmmm L‘W@lﬂ
Uimiﬂ’m‘uaﬂaLL@J‘U'\’JE{TW]’NE] mawwmweﬂ “Aﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂ’liﬂ@@@]ﬂi@% IY!‘WW‘W
0-2216-6600-18 #ip 245 3813 0-2612-4557 wi3a Ul www.mk co.th

mo:guhma:ddennau

L ACJILOTY TRt MAPICE 7, o8 Qv nagns hwang uas
JUUITHAVRILTENY mamummiwmﬁmmumﬂwmuvLﬁmwLmuﬁiﬂw
ivualiathedtszininm uas wansewanifuatadudsslumdaaula
eafuizesreg aaomaulddnsfasunanisuiifeusasdisuimsi
Yszdmnlasang

aowdangonwals:losd _
ﬂm:nﬁumﬂﬁmmﬁﬁmmﬁLﬁaalaaﬁuﬁuﬁﬁawﬁmwwﬂ@LLsﬁﬂw’m
rasloriuasldnansananumane auamﬁamawnmﬂ ﬁwmumiﬂgw
mwanmmwmmmmmnmwa fvualagsaiuae Naﬂf’umﬂﬂmwnmm
mimmuﬁiﬂmawammm‘smiwﬂmiﬂw@@amwaﬂmiﬂ

QSﬂSSSUfT\DSSﬂ'\?

LwﬂwLﬁu"Lﬂmwanma:mnuml,aﬂam‘mﬂ Thaamzidanioaiuans
fuRaTay AFussanasHLTM AL UTEN ADINTINNIVBILTENY e
VLﬂmwwanﬁgummmnumwmwmama amﬁﬁwmﬁmmma TN
209u3th ielfetaluninuialaoasensadely dilde

uloueUutnIVISESSSUYOVEUSHISIAWUNVIUZOVUSEN

i eRtal

«  AuiwsiuAerevlumameunidensl foAmeadassen wazvilddulad
wihnunnauluisny dlaludiedsufjoadenarn

«  AuiwsiuAavevsdansieyudifeadenisjian1eatsssanvasyisng

+ wilaldtuneuiidududmiumadfidasdensjifneatessmasyana
Tuusamy
Y - - ae . I

« Auims nudenssumsvisvuaznsumsildlgnssumsuinsdeny
Wendasiumseiiugsiavasisny

Aol R adNDvin
v a aw v o A o o4 X aY 9 1y a

« Huinsvesuishny ddayniuiniuFasilugiusilallniihvasians

U
v & a

. Nmmiamawmwsﬁaamqaw @aaﬂamﬂaulaml,uumﬂ@e] A8 AN
4 v

gasalauas mmﬁwawnaﬂqumﬁw%mmﬁmﬂaﬂ uasianasszTom

Togsan il

- dudumameldvauandnauasnaysslosivanigng

- vhwihidheanuasnsauazazinsz Tndosiifanad Ussaunisoh uas
ANNTIM Y AINTZN

- Aamsgualdliinindaulag vasisny Womoviogydsllasian
Uszlowd .

- iwmuwami@”wLﬁumuaa‘waﬁwLaamLm“muﬁm@wmwmﬂm%ﬂ Az
mmmumhwamumn USZAUALVBILTINY LU TUIDIANHEN
waaHHakaza N LTeda uasidayaaiuamiie e

- VLummwmamwmumwamawmm sofaulasdzey Iﬂm@w%mmﬁmu

- Aamdayaua aﬁmwammmmummumiﬂguwmmaaNammmm

foanan
Auimsasdiag

- mmwwauammﬂ‘uaumwaﬂmmﬂuawmmﬂ@mammmamemwmu
andiag uatlsifiadoudaiaste

B maiunmﬂwmmnaeﬂul‘*ﬂ’mmfmﬁiw
VLma”Lwmmmwmmmwiamw34mlawaiumaaumt,nmrwmmmw 390
STEEGI mamauvLﬂW] UYDINANAUT

o duiwnfianuiuAareuiiniundafurivesuisng degndilunisivue

AATIUVBININN TUHUIUUAZUATIENHNATIIUIU

- mwu@mmﬁmmummmﬂmwwwammmmamuvl,ﬂ wasrlsulalE
umimmummmmu

- mlmmmmﬁwwuaqﬂmww&mmmwmmﬁmwmaﬂgumu It
ANADLUTIUR AN NENATTIUNFOTU

28 ANNUAL REPORT 2015
M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

rules of the Stock Exchange. The investor’s relations unit within the company
coordinates in order to support the company’s news and information. Please contact
at Tel. 0-2216-6600-18 ext. 245 or Fax 0-2612-4557, or website : www.mk.co.th

Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors has participated in identifying the company’s vision,
mission, strategy, goals, and budget and taking care of ensuring that the actions
are efficiently in compliance with the specified action plans and expressing the
opinions freely regarding any decisions of various issues. In additions, the Board
of Directors has monitored the management’s performance every quarter.

Conflict of Interest

The Board of Directors has realized the related transactions with persons
who may have the conflict of interest and considered the properness deliberately
every time. The Board of Directors has also performed the duties according the
Stock Exchange’s rules by identifying the price and conditions according to the
normal business operations like the transactions by outsiders.

Business Ethics

To be in line with a good corporate governance policy, especially in relation
to responsibilities and ethic of executives and employees, the Board of Directors
have formulated practises of responsibilities and ethics which executives and
employees of the Company are required to strictly comply with.

Ethical practise policy for executives and employees

To the Company

* The duties of executives officers are to propagate of ethical practises and to
ensure that all employees understand them.

»  Also executives should follow the ethical rules.

e Take any neccessary actions to support compliance with ethical practises
by everyone within the Company.

»  Executives, Board of Directors and non-executive directors are connected
to the business operation of the Company.

To owner or shareholders

e The Executives are engaged to such a matter as a non-owner.

e All executives are expected perform their duty with honesty, integrity and
to treat fairly both major and minor shareholders for the benefit of all relevant
parties as follows:

- Perform their duty under authority and benefit of the Company.
- Perform their duties as a professional, experienced person would do with
full effort and caution.
Manage the Company’s properties in amanner that avoids their depreciation.
- Report the Company’s status and operation results regularly, accurately
and completely for both positive and negative result based on reasonable
and reliable ground with sufficient information.
- Prevent the Company’s confidential information from being disclosed to
the other party especially competitors.
- Provide information and explaination neccessary for Company's Auditor.
Toward customers
e Executive are expected to
- To provide correct and accurate information related to products as per
customers requirement.

- To sell the products under the agreed price or provide fair value in case
of selling without previously agreed conditions.

- Not to generate expectation or misleading information in relation to quality,
price, quantity or any terms of sell of the products.

* The executives are responsible for determination and maintenance of a
certain quality level of products provided to customers.

- Determine the minimum standards of the products quality whichis
acceptable by customers and ensure to follow such determination.

- Introducing new standard quality which is higher than previous level is
another way to generate differential remuneration.
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- Provide support in respond to customers' claims in regard to product
quality and ensure the customers will be served promptly

- gaurantee that the products quality are in line with Company's standard

manage the Company in a direction to reduce costs while maintaing customers'

benefit to the highest level especially:

- The determination to increase the Company's efficiency.

- Create awarness among employees in the limited resources of the
Company and suggest them to use it up to the required amount/volume.

- Operate the business with possible lowest cost while maintaining the
product quality within the targeted standard.

The executives shall take customer’s confidential information as a serious

matter and not use it for the their own or any related party's benefit.

To trading partners and creditors

It is duty of the executives to ensure that there is a good practice in regard

to purchasing goods from trading partners of the Company as follows:

- Against bribery to or from the trading partners, in the event that the
employees of the trading partner bribe or indicates his/her intention of
bribery to our employees, the issue must be noticed to the trading partners.

- Terminate trading with the trading partner that bribe our employees.

- Ensure thatthereis no bribery between trading partner and the Company.

The executives shall control to ensure that the terms as well as debt is under

trading conditions as follows:

- Maintain and comply with the terms executed with creditors strictly such as
a payment, maintenance of security assets etc. The capital acquired
through loan should not be expedited in a way against the purposes
agreed with the creditors.

- Conductan operation that will not increase risk to the Company's creditors.

- Report financial status of the Company to creditors accurately and completely
based on facts.

- Take into account the benefit of creditors in case the due date of loan
repayment is extended.

- Report to the creditors in advance the failure of comply with the obligation
in the agreement, then seek for the solution together with creditors.

To the competitors

.

Executive are expected to perform their duty

- Within fair competition frames.

- Refrain from making false statements or without reasonable ground toward
the competitors or its products.

- Refrain from access competitors' confidential information with bad intention
or inappropriate manner.

To employees

Executive are expected to

- Provide an appropriate structure of remunerations in line staff’s competency,
responsibilities and their work performances.

- Provide training courses to allow staffs in all levels to exercise their knowledge
and competency for their own benefit.

- Provide working environment where safety of employees and their properties
are taken into account. Ensure that the tools and equipment are provided
appropriately.

- Encourage employees to participate and to be a part of the team to set
the plan and solve problems of the Company.

- appoint, re-locate, promote and punishment shall be conducted with integrity.

- Comply with all the rules and regulations relating to labor laws and
revelant provision.

- Disseminate ethical practices to all employees and to ensure employees'
understanding their roles and duties.

- Avoid operation that increases risks to occupation of the employees.

- Treat to all employees on the basis of human right and pay respect to
personal rights.
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To communities
e The executives are expected to conduct the operation as follows:
- Take into consideration impacts to nature, environment and public.
- Avoid saving costs and expenses without considering well being of the
whole society.
- Participate in the projects that improve quality of community environment
where the Company operates

Responsibilities of employees

e Perform their duties with responsibility, honesty, loyalty for benefit and
stability of the Company and for their own.

¢ Maintain and create harmony and unity among collegues. Work as a team

and willing to solve any problems with full participation.

e Perform duty with devotion and patience as a part to lead Company to
efficiency, benefit and to be number one.

*  Operate the Company’s properties in a manner that save the cost, maintain
the properties to avoid their depreciation or damages.

¢ Keep confidential information of the customers, trading partners and Company
in secret and not disclose information, news and production technology of
the Company to any other party.

»  Cooporate and assist all colleagues by taking into consideration the highest
benefit of the Company. Respect the rights of individuals.

* Pay attention and put best effort to keep safety working environment.

* Distribute and share professional knowledge to all colleagues taking into
consideration benefit and target of the Company as a priority.

¢ Refrain from generating scandal to the Company/executives and colleagues
without facts and fairmess.

* Inform revelant departments immediately if any misbehave or illegal actions
is found.

»  Pay respect to all senior colleagues.

¢ Don't seek advantages by using their position for their own benefit or other person.

¢ Avoidany action that wil cause damages to image and reputation of the Company.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company manages business on the basis of anti-corruption policy
against all forms of corruption. It is strictly forbidden to accept or offer bribery
adhere to all activities under managment of the Company.

Business operation of the Company and its subsidiaries are refrained from
corruptions: request, accept or offer bribery.

The executives and employees must perform their fiduciary duties with
honesty and care taking into consideration the interest of all shareholders.

The executives and employees are refrained from claiming, executing or
accepting corruption for the benefit of their own, families, friends and people
they know.

Not accepting and offering gifts in form of cash or other items in the same
manner unless otherwise on appropriate occasions within appropriate price which
should be consulted with department head beforehand.

The Company does not provide any forms of support or donation to political
nominee or any particular political party or to execute policital activities.

A charity donation and financial support made to charity has to be proceed
with transparency and in line with law provision and good moral.

The Company's policy is to comply with Thai law against all forms of
corruptions.

The Company implements the effective internal control system with auditing
and balance the management power to prevent corruption among executives
and staffs.

The Company have evaluated risk of curruption that may occur to the
Company in order to stipulate proper anti-corruption policy toward risk evaluation
result.
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The Audit Committee is assigned by Board of Directors to investigate the
compliance to the anti-corruption policy by reviewing interal control system as
well as reporting the validity and effeciency of the anti-corruption policy.

If the directors, executive or employee does not follow the anti-corruption
policy, the Company will appoint a disciplinary punishment case by case under
regulations of Human Resource Management.

The Company has no policy to degrade, punish or cause negative impact
to those employees who refuse corruption even such action might bring benefit
to the Company.

The Company will consider collaboration with private companies launching
activities against corruption as another way to contribute our help to society.

The Anti-Corruption Policy is exposed in our website: www.mk.co.th for
public acknowledgement.

Check and Balance of Non-executive Directors
The company has 10 members of Board of Directors consisting of :

- 6 Executive directors.

- 4 Non-executive directors.
or 4 in 10 of the Board of Directors.

- 3 Independent Directors.
or 3 in 10 of the Board of Directors.
Audit Committee (refer to the sub-topic of management structure)

Qualifications of Independent Directors

The independent directors must have the complete qualifications as follows.

1. Hold the shares of no more than 0.5 % of the paid-up capital of the company,
subsidiaries, or related companies and shall count the shares held by the
related persons.

2. - Bethedirectors who do not participate in the management of the company,

subsidiaries, related companies or the company’s major shareholders.

- Be the directors who are not the employees, officers, or advisors who
obtain the permanent salaries from the company, subsidiaries, related
companies or the company’s major shareholders.

3. Be the directors who do not have any benefits, or direct or indirect conflict
of interest regarding the financial condition or management of the company,
subsidiaries, related companies or the company’s major shareholders.

4. Be the directors who do not have any benefits, or direct or indirect conflict
of interest abovementioned for the past 1 year before being appointed to
be the independent director.

5. Be the directors who are not the related persons or close relatives of the
company’s executives or major shareholders.

6. Be the directors who are not appointed to be the agent who maintains the
benefits of the company’s directors, major shareholders, or shareholders
who are the persons related to the company’s major shareholders.

7. Able to perform the duties, express the opinions or report the performance
according to the duties assigned by the company’s Board of Directors without
being controlled by the executives or company’s major shareholders, and
related persons or close relatives of such persons.

Related persons  means persons who have the relationship or are related to
company until they are not able to perform the duties with
freedom or flexibility such as suppliers, customers, creditors,
debtors or persons who have significant business relationship, etc.

Position Classification
The Chairman of the Board of Directors must be the representative of the
major shareholders who hold the shares of 17.90% of total shareholders.
Although the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Executive
Board is the same person, the structure of the Board consists of the independent
directors for one-third of the Board of Directors so the check and balance and
auditing occurs. In additions, the role, duties, and responsibilities are clearly
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separated between the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the
Executive Board or managing director and person who are the Chairman of the
Board of Directors must be mainly considered from the independent directors.

Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors must be responsible for the company and its
subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements, and financial information appeared
on the annual report prepared according to the generally accepted accounting
standards and must disclose the sufficient information in the notes to financial
statements and the authorized directors must sign and affix the company’s seal
in order to certify the accuracy of such information.

Sub-committee

The Company’s Board of Directors appoints the committee to help supervise
the company’s business operations and such committees are from the independent
directors with the duties and authorities according to the details on the topic of
the management structure. The committees shall report the performance and
monitoring to the company’s Board of Directors.

1. Audit Committee

1. Mr. Att Asavanund Chairman as independent director
who is the accounting expert.
Director as independent director

Director as independent director

2. Mr. Chaiyapont Timsootheepant
3. Mrs. Malai Rachataswan
Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. To review the Company'’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is
accurate and adequate.

2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system
to ensure that they are suitable and efficient, to determine an internal audit
unit's independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer and
dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of
an internal audit.

3. Toreview the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange,
the Exchange’s regulations, and the laws relating to the Company’s business.

4. Toconsider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s
auditor, and to propose such person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a
non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year.

5. To review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions that may lead
to conflicts of interests, to ensure that they are in compliance with the laws
and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable and for the highest
benefit of the company.

6. To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit
committee’s report which must be signed by the audit committee’s chairman
and consist of at least the following information :

(a) anopinionon the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s
financial report,

an opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,

an opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange,
the Exchange’s regulations, or the laws relating to the Company’s business,
an opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

an opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests
the number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such
meetings by each committee member,

(9) anopinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its

performance of duties in accordance with the charter, and

other transactions which according to the audit committee’s opinion,

should be known to the shareholders and general investors, subject

to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s
board of directors; and

7. To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors,
with the approval of the audit committee.

(b
(c
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2. Remuneration Committee

1. Mr.Att Asavanund Chairman
as independent director
Committee Member
as independent director
Committee Member

as independent director

2. Mr.Chaiyapont ~ Timsootheepant

3. Mrs.Malai Rachataswan

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee

1. Consider the guideline for specifying the directors’ remuneration, etc.

2. ldentify the procedures and criteria for identifying the fair and reasonable
directors’ remuneration and propose to the shareholders’ meeting for approval.

3. Nominating Committee
1. MrAtt Asavanund Chairman
as independent director
Committee Member
as independent director
Committee Member
as independent director
Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Nominating Committee
1. Select persons who shall be deserved to be proposed to be the new directors
or high-ranking executives.

2. Mr.Chaiyapont Timsootheepant

3. Mrs.Malai Rachataswan

2. ldentify the procedures and criteria for recruiting and selecting the company’s
directors and high-ranking executives.

4. Risk Management Committee

1. Mr. Vorasit Pokachaiyapat Chairman

2. Miss Rachanee Mahatdetkul Committee Member

3. Miss Dusadee Tancharoen Committee Member

4. Mr. Sakdina Manlerd Committee Member

5. Mrs. Sutida Suriyodorn Committee Member and Secretary

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
1. Determine the risk management policy for the risk management operation
frame of the company.

2. Evaluate the risk management by considering the possibility of occurred risks
both external and internal which may affect the company business operation,
in order to apply measures to prevent and manage risk such as business risk,
financial risk, strategic risk and operation risks which involves the process
of business operations, e.g., construction methods, contractor problem,
fluctuations in the price of materials, etc.

3. Analyze the impact of the risk for the company and the potential risks and
severity of the impact.

4. Specify the measures to follow up on operations that are caused of the risk
factors to prevent and/or reduce the possibility of the risks and set up scopes
of acceptability of each type of risk are to be determined.

5. Monitor and evaluate the risk management and report the risk assessment
results to the Board of Directors.
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The company recognizes the importance of risk management and has
risk management committee with the major responsibility of determining and
evaluating risk of the business including the communication of risk management
in the organization. Measures have been adopted to oversee that business of
operation abide by law and related regulations. A report of risk management is
also conducted.

Risk assessment involves the likelihood and the impact of the risk, in order
to apply controls and measures to prevent, treat and manage risk.

Types of risk
1. Business Risk: to consider source of capital, competitors and customer's
needs, etc.

2. Operation Risk: to consider brand name/trade mark, customer satisfaction,
operation efficiency and effectiveness, human resource, i.e., employees,
contractors, etc.

3. Financial Risk: to consider cash liquidity, credit risk, interest rate risk as well
as financial instruments.

4. Information Risk:

- Accounting and finance information.

- Planning and the preparation of the annual budget.

- Business plan.

- Analysis and feasibility study of investment in each project.

- Pricing.

- Performance appraisal, overall operation.

- To report to the related government sector.

Other risks, which may affect the company, are also taken into consideration
and provide controls and prevent measures. The company has determined and
risk management policy and structure throughout the organization, as follows:-

Organization-wide Risk Management Policy

1. Engage the executives and employees within the departments and units to
be delivered the risk management policy. They will participate in development
of the risk management within the organization and they will be promoted to
understand their responsibilities regarding the risk management.

2. Provide the efficient risk management processes in every operation procedure
according to the good corporate governance principle, in order to reduce
uncertainty and achieving in the business objective of the organization.

3. Manage and support the risk management to ensure a success throughout
the organization and achieving in the business objective of the organization by
utilizing the existing resources efficiently for the evaluation and identification
of proper risk management measures.

4. Promote and reinforce the risk management as the organizational culture
so that everyone would realize the importance of risk management as the
key issue for business operation.

The structure of Risk management

The organization-wide risk management structure involves directors, executives
and all departments. The Risk Management Committee has been appointed by
the board of directors to monitor and supervise the risk management system in
the organization, understand the risks that may have an impact and apply the
appropriate control to manage those risks. Thereis a central agency to coordinate
and support the management for the effective and efficient implementation of
the risk management process.

The executives and all employees must know and understand Risk management
policy in detalil, including the steps to follow in order to treat or manage the risk
arising during the actual operation. Criteria of which can be analyzed as follows.
«  Strategic Risks. Strategic plans have been defined for business operation,

e.g., purchasing new land plots for future projects, product type, target

market, etc.
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«  Operation Risks involves the process of business operation or operators,

e.g., construction methods, fluctuations in the price of materials, etc.

- Upon analysis of the risks in accordance with the stipulated criteria,
it may take the analysis such as Mind mapping to bring executives and
employees to participate and brainstorm about a topic of the risks arising
from the actual operation of each section.

- When each department risks have been identified, they will be summarized
by analyzing the likelihood of potential risks and severity of the impact.
Because the risk of some types are less likely to happen but when it
occurs, its affect are intense. Scopes of acceptability of each type of
risk are to be determined, controlled and managed.

Directors’ Meeting

In 2015, the company arranged 15 directors’ meetings and in each meeting
and the Chairman of Board of Directors acted as the Chairman of the meeting.
The Chairman of Board of Directors separately performed the duties from
the Chairman of Executive Board or company’s managing director. The audit
committee arranged the meeting for 4 times.

The Board regularly identifies the meeting and arranges the special meeting
deemed as necessary by identifying the clear meeting agenda in advance. The
meeting agenda regarding the monitoring of business performance is regularly
included. The company submits the invitation letter, meeting agenda, previous
meeting minutes and attachments to the Board 7 days in advance so the directors
have sufficient time to study the information before the meeting. In each meeting,
the Chairman allocates enough time for discussion of each agenda and the
relevant executives must attend the meeting in order to explain the information
to the Board of Directors in case that the Board requires the additional details.
The company prepares the meeting minutes in writing and store the meeting
minutes certified by the Board so the Board and relevant parties are able to
audit such minutes.

Self-evaluation of the Board

By using the self-evaluation form of the company’s Board of Directors. Such
form is the form prepared by Thailand Institute of Directors and the company adjusts
the form in order to be in compliance with the company’s situation, especially
regarding the roles and duties of directors that should be in accordance with those
specified in the company’s corporate governance policy. The evaluation helps
each director and the Board review the problems and threats during the past
year and it is the tools for auditing and analyzing in order to recognize whether
the Board works efficiently and perform the duties completely according to their
duties or not.

Directors’ and Executives’ Remuneration

The Board of Directors appointed the Nominating and Remuneration Committee
in order to consider the directors’ and executives’ remuneration before proposing
the company’s Board of Directors for decision-making. The Nominating and
Remuneration Committee shall compare the remuneration of the company’s
directors with the remuneration standard of other companies in the same
business. Regarding the remuneration of the company’s executives which is in
terms of salaries and bonus, it depends on the company’s business performance
and the performance of each executive. For the directors’ remuneration, it is the
meeting allowances and annual pension only. The identification of such directors’
remuneration must be approved by the shareholders” meeting (as mentioned on
the topic regarding the executives’ remuneration) which is in compliance with
the principle and policy approved by the shareholders’ meeting.

Development of Directors and Executives

In order for the Board to better realize the company’s business, the company
arranges the business visit to various company’s projects at least once a year
and the company also conducts training for directors and executives. Most of
the directors attend the training conducted by Thailand Institute of Directors such
as Director Accreditation Curriculum, Director Certification Curriculum, etc.
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The Board of Directors realizes the importance of an efficient internal control
system as an important tool to help reduce business risks, to protect company’s
assets, to generate trust in financial reports and to protect financial investment on
behalf of company’s shareholders. The audit committee is, therefore, responsible
for the establishment of efficient internal control system and risk management at an
appropriate level.

In 2015, the Board of Directors and independent auditors considered and agreed
that the company’s operations had follow established procedures and ensured that no
substantial mistakes were made. The evaluation of the internal control system comprises:
Environment Control
«  The company’s policies and procedures are fair to customers and beneficial to

the company. All policies and procedures were put in writing.

« The company has established clear duties and proper authority.

«  The company’s organization supports management efficiency.

«  The company places great emphasis on doing business to an established code
of conduct and ensures the honesty of both the management and its employees.

Appropriate Risk assessment

«  The company considered and evaluated its business operations with the aim of
recognizing various risk factors both internal and external that might affect the
organization.

«  The company evaluated and followed up on operations and set up measures to
reduce risks to an appropriate level.

High-quality control activities

Good control activities must be responded positively among employees. This was
done through various methods and policies put in place by the management, including:
o Establishing appropriate approval authority and levels: The company has set up a

system, whereby authority is granted in writing, for the approval of budgets at

various levels. All duties and responsibilities are completely separated for check-
and-balance purpose among three functions take place including:

1. Transaction approval

2. Accounting records and information

3. Assets control and storage.

The approval of all business transactions between the company and related parties
which involves long-term engaging transactions such as purchasing contract, loans of
guarantees has followed up on condition of the agreement for the entire abiding period.
« To separate and functions that may encourage fraud or illegalities.

« To abide by all relevant laws and regulations.

Efficient Information and communications systems

«  Important information are timely and amply presented to the management and
the Board of Directors for decision-making.

«  Thecompany has a practice for the collection of all financial documents for inspection.
If fraudulent behavior is suspected, an investigation committee will be established.
A suggestion box is set up on company premises

«  The company disclosed all information regarding connected transactions correctly
and completely. This includes trade and service transactions.

Efficient monitoring and evaluation systems

« The company has adjusted all business practices in accordance with changing
situations. An evaluation of operations was undertaken to ensure that they achieve
company’s objectives and policies as established by the Board of Directors.

«  The company regularly inspected and evaluated its operations in compliance with
its internal control system.

«  The company has stipulated that the internal audit report must be submitted to the
Audit Committee, who approved hiring Multiplus Consulting Co., Ltd. as the internal
auditor for the company.
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The company makes connected-transactions with some related parties,
with common shareholders and / or directors. These transactions are in the
normal course of business with highest benefits to the company taken into
consideration should further benefit the company’s investment in the future.

Connected-transactions the support of related business include :
1. Services

- Mancon co., Ltd. (Subsidiary)

- Duraflor Corp., Ltd. (Related Company)

- Samakkee Cement Co., Ltd. (Affiliate)

The company operated an office rental service for related businesses.
The rental price was determined by rates at the current market value and
was adjusted in-line with the present economic climate. The total value
was 1.80 Million baht. The company and subsidiary had purchased building
materials from affiliate amounting to 28.62 Million baht.

2. Loans from connected parties
2.1 Loans from related companies.
Short-term loans to related parties

uS¥neas / Subsidiaries Fauiu (i) / Sasmaniiis / Interest rate
Amount (Thousand Baht)

USHN UIINONDINAIL 110
USHN 18N 1A 71 Ana MK71 Company Limited
USEN WIBENA FLIaaaLNUR A1na

kit Total

Bantudthong Pattana Co., Ltd.

Prospect Development Co., Ltd

600,000 2.50

273,000 2.50

350,000 5.2
1,223,000

(@J'ﬁmam@ﬂi:namumiﬁuﬁmmm 5) / (Notes to : Financial Statement # 5)

2.2 dunasasaniansineadaei

2.2 Advances from related parties

uS¥neae / Subsidiaries I B0
Amount (thousand Baht)

UIEN WHUADYH N0 Mancon Company Limited 130,697
LIEN UITVANDINGU 0116 Buntudthong Pattana Co., Ltd. 882
158 1By 1A 71 719 MK71 Company Limited 1,075

(@J'ﬁmam@ﬂi:namumiﬁuﬂmmm 5) / (Notes to : Financial Statement # 5)
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Connected-transaction policy

The company established a practical connected-transaction policy
with related parties. The policy was focused on clarity, transparency and
impartiality for the customers, traders and shareholders, while ensuring

the best interests of the company.

Opinions of the auditor on related and connected-transactions
Please consult the details contained in Notes to Financial Statements # 5

Procedure for approval

The authority of approval was based on previously approved financial
budgets and has proposal to the audit committee for inspection to avoid
any conflict of interest.
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Operating Results

The company’s revenue from sales and services in 2015 stood at Bt. 3,749.88
million, soaring 59.78% from the previous year. Growth of revenues from main business,
real estate, increased by Bt 1,380.71 million or 60.86% as a result of 554.59 million
Baht revenue recognition of august condominium which project was completed and
transferred in the end of 2015. Excluding income from transfer of condominium, the
Company’s income recognition from housing project and land increased by 826.12
milion baht representing 36.41 percent. Main projects contributing to sales revenue
were Chuan Chuen Charun 3, Private Park, Chuan Chuen Green Bound and Chuan
Chuen Modus Vibhavadi. Meanwhile, revenues from rental and golf business, was
100.37 million Baht, and increased by 22.29 million Baht or 28.54 percent. This was
an effect of investment made on 26 October 2015 in Prospect Development Company
Limited - the company engaged in development of warehouse and factory renting.
As a result, the Company generated more revenue from warehouse and factory rent.

Gross profit for the year 2015 was 1,140.85 million Baht with 30.42 percent
Gross Profit Margin, lower than last year’'s which was 40.70 percent. The main reason
was a consequence of higher revenue recognition from condominium and land which
yield lower gross profit margin than single houses and townhouses. SG&A expenses
increased from 417.69 million Baht of last year to 590.93 million Baht. However, SG&A
to sales ratio decreased from 17.80 percent to 15.76 percent due to high revenue.

After interest and income tax, MK’s net profit for the year 2015 stood at 626.71
million Baht, or 0.71 baht per share, 40.10 percent increase from 447.33 million Baht
of last year. Net Profit Margin was 15.68 percent, lower than 18.76 percent of 2014.

At the ordinary meeting of shareholders no.1/2015, the shareholders passed the
resolution to pay dividend at the rate of 0.25 Baht per share, of which 0.10 Baht per
share had already been paid as interim dividend in September, 2014. Total dividend of
the year 2014 at 0.35 Baht per share amounted to 301.11 million Baht. The dividend
payout ratio was 67.31 percent of the net profit, which the Company’s policy is at least
30 percent dividend payout ratio

Financial Position

In 2015 the Company’s assets valued at 11,677.56 million Baht, increased by
4,316.31 million Baht y-o-y, from 7,361.25 million Baht. This was a result of positive
investment in renting business field, in Prospect Development Company Limited (the
company conducting warehouse development and factory renting), acquisition (100
percent of ordinary shares) andinvestmentin S 71 Holdings Company Limited, acquisition
of 85.45 percent of ordinary shares as to indirectly invested in the subsidiary - Onnut
Development Company Limited. S 71 Holding, the company developing real estate for
renting, holds 100% of ordinary shares.

Value of investment in properties and leasehold increased to 3,877.55 million
Baht, liabilities increased by 3,148.44 million Baht from 1,891.39 million Baht in 2014
to 5,039.83 million Baht in 2015 as a result of loan and issuance of debenture.

Short term loan increased from 430 million Baht to 1,436.62 million Baht as a
result of loan acquired through issuance of Bill of Exchange in which the interest rate
was lower than loan acquired from financial institutions.

In addition, the indirect subsidiaries’ short term loan acquired from financial
institutions, to invest in the land development designated for rent of real estate, coupled
with liabilities recorded in Prospect Development Co., Ltd., added up current and long
term liabilities. Shareholders’ equity increased by 1,167.86 million Baht from year end
of 2014, ratio of debt to equity (D / E Ratio) at the end of 2015, thereby, increased
from 0.35 times in 2014 to 0.76 times as of the year end of 2015. However, the rate
was considered low when comparing to average residential industry which was higher
than 1.43 times

In the 2015, the Company’s expenditure on investment of property development
for rent and housing were continuous. Cash flow spent in net investing activities turned
negative (2,440.60 million Baht), from being positive in the 2014. Furthermore, loan
acquired for investment increased cash flow from financing activities from positive
100.25 million Baht to 1,839.99 millions Baht, totaling net amount of cash flow for year
2015 at 277.40 million Baht.
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The Board of directors of M.K. Real Estate Development Public Company
Limited appointed the company’s audit committee on 28 April 2015, The
committee comprises three independent audit members who are not staff

members of the company.

In 2015, the audit committee performed is duties in accordance with
the company’s policies as set by the board of directors. The committee

organized four meetings to consider several issues, summarized as follows:

- Review the company’s financial statement in each quarter and its
annual budget to ensure their accuracy in accordance with Stock
Exchange of Thailand requirements. Make sure that the financial
statements are transparent and accurate in accordance with the law.

- Review the internal audit to be appropriately conducted. Provide
comments and advice to the management team.

- Acknowledge and comment on financial statement issues before joining
with independent auditors for a review.

- Follow up on the company’s performance to ensure it meets SET and
legal requirements.

- Consider and propose to the board of directors the appointment of an
auditor for 2016 for further proposal for the approval of the shareholders
at the 2016 annual general meeting.

The audit committee undertook all its duties independently and discussed
various issues with the management team in accordance with the principles
of Good Governance, which is considered fundamental to the company’s

continued growth.

Moo

Mr. Att  Asavanund
(Chairman of Audit Committee)
19 February 2016
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To the Shareholders of M.K. Real Estate Development Public Company Limited
| have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements
of M.K. Real Estate Development Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and of M.K. Real Estate Development Public Company Limited (the “Company”),
respectively, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated and separate statements
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate
financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with
Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and the Company, respectively,
as at 31 December 2015 and their financial performance and cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matters

Without qualifying my opinion, | draw attention to note 4 to the financial statements.
On 26 October 2015, the Group entered into the business acquisition of Prospect
Development Co., Ltd and determined the fair value of identifiable assets and recognised
the difference between the fair value of identifiable assets and the consideration
transferred as “gain on bargain purchase” of Baht 133.97 million. The fair value
of identifiable assets and allocation of purchase price has been assessed provisionally
and is subject to adjustment within one year from the acquisition date, as specified

by Thai Financial Reporting Standard 3 (revised 2014) Business Combinations.

e

7

(Vannaporn Jongperadechanon)

Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 4098
KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. Bangkok

25 February 2016
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VIEN TUAILANZNIT AN (NWITW) Lazu3Eveas/ M.K. Real Estate Development Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Funswe
Assets

AN
Note

31 fwanaw/
31 December
2558/2015

31 suAN/

31 December

2557/2014

1 unsau/
1 January
2557/2014

31 suAN/

31 December

2558/2015

JUNITRUIN JUNITNWANIZAANTS
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

31 suaN/

31 December

2557/2014

1 unsau/
1 January
2557/2014

_-- (ﬂ%’uﬂiqlwﬁ) (ﬂ%/llﬂ?‘\flﬂul) - (ﬂ%uﬁiﬂlﬂaj) (ﬂ§uﬂ§q1“ﬁ)
Restated Restated Restated Restated

(un) (in Baht)

FunIndnyuden
Current assets
RUSALAZINE NI UIIUER
Cash and cash equivalents
ﬁuamwﬁ&amn
Current investments
@ﬂ%ﬁmﬁﬁw
Trade accounts receivable
L‘EuiﬁﬁgNi:ﬂ:%‘uLLﬁﬁaﬂ’li%ﬁﬂTﬁaﬂﬁ%
Short-term loans to related parties
1ATINTOFIRINNTWETZHININ TR
Real estate projects under development
AfuuazAAamR e
Land and development costs for sale
Guilnddndetian
Deposits for purchase of land
gﬂ%ﬁnuﬁuﬁ@mﬂuwwmq
Receivable from expropriation

to be state highway
auw%'wéwguﬁwﬁlu
Other current assets
MuAUnTndnguion
Total current assets

a o & 1 -

qAunswe Yumgunyu

Non-current assets

- o a dav o o vy

Surnaatunsdunddednalunisly

Deposits pledged as collateral

Ruasnuluyisndes

Investments in subsidiaries

Nuamuluuismsim

Investments in associates

Ruasuszezenlufansiiieidesiu

Other long-term investments - related
parties

ﬁuammw:mﬂuﬁﬁwﬁu

Other long-term investments

CEN R IR TG R KN

Investment properties

NAU mﬂﬁm:aﬁ‘ﬂﬁigﬂ

Property, plant and equipment

Ansnaan

Leasehold right

a4 e ias

Funindldfiamnn

Intangible assets

a o e aa vy o o o

FunSndnmsldulesansda ik

Deferred tax assets

Ao ey a4

aumwﬂwwgunauau

Other non-current assets

Auniwd linyuiisu

Total non-current assets

PUAUNINE
Total assets

9, 11

10, 11

20

293,241,551

396,210,700

118,981,439

3,863,868,740

2,214,238,243

15,804,929

30,000,604

4,695,918,494

1,660,912,441

24,551,838

169,749,943

4,018,245,778

1,668,735,901

278,160,296

396,210,700

1,223,000,000

3,842,348,973

1,329,193,290

13,789,012

30,000,604

4,608,983,419

1,648,792,487

24,126,716

169,749,943

3,942,596,624

1,655,790,006

- 9,369,500 1,252,500 - 9,369,500 1,252,500
- 59,543,000 - - 59,543,000 -

24,191,162 13,011,805 10,203,615 26,705,937 12,681,212 9,966,607
6,910,731,835 6,484,560,773 5,892,739,575 7,095,619,196 6,383,159,234 5,803,482,396
6,441,940 6,518,158 10,569,644 4,893,847 5,181,971 9,248,323

- - - 1,953,389,587 25,940,000 25,940,000

96,770,827 111,956,284 107,378,058 154,078,485 156,066,866 135,745,381
10,025,670 21,574,090 21,574,090 9,086,120 20,634,540 20,634,540
140,000 140,000 140,000 130,000 130,000 130,000
2,775,292,383 - - 6,485,627 - -
682,929,553 692,516,813 703,700,249 682,253,651 692,503,933 703,681,268
1,119,864,894 17,610,484 21,754,127 14,403,855 17,610,484 21,754,127
660,439 183,631 72,430 543,246 183,631 72,430
42,447,922 23,202,201 20,844,293 27,740,009 22,786,138 20,532,929
32,251,212 2,989,446 3,845,949 2,646,009 2,779,195 3,635,699
4,766,824,840 876,691,107 889,878,840 2,855,650,436 943,816,758 941,374,697
11,677,556,675 7,361,251,880 6,782,618,415 9,951,269,632 7,326,975,992 6,744,857,093

‘ﬁ‘mﬂmqﬂﬁ:ﬂamumi@m%udmwﬁwmwmﬁlﬁuﬁ, / The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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JUNITRUIN JUNITNWANIZAANTS
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

wuauuaumummwnawu NN
31 fwanan/ 31 swnan/ 1 WnsaN/ 31 fwnaw/ 31 swnaw/ 1 WnIaN/
Liabilities and equity Note

31 December | 31 December 1 January 31 December | 31 December 1 January

2558/2015 2557/2014 2557/2014 2558/2015 2557/2014 2557/2014

(ﬂ§uﬂ§ﬂlﬁﬂ) (3ualgelnai) - WSualgelna) | (Sudaslnai)
Restated Restated Restated Restated

(u) (in Baht)

m{ﬁumguﬁz/u

Current liabilities
Rudniiuiygswensuaziuios
Bank overdrafts and short-term

i:a:é?umﬂamﬁumiﬁu 21 1,436,608,886 430,000,000 80,174,500 530,263,886 430,000,000 80,174,500
loans from financial institutions
Junesasanfansiiieadosiu 5 - - - 132,653,830 34,619,721 19,993,107
Advances from related parties
ﬁwﬁmﬁw 5,22 161,196,100 131,683,142 119,733,275 95,960,854 122,874,375 114,455,900
Trade accounts payable
meumwmu - 1,000,000 31,495,431 1,000,000 31,495,431
Payables for purchase of land
ammamuﬂam iE ma‘wmm%w 21 328,335,050 - 746,665,158 321,994,147 - 746,665,158

Frszmeluniled
Current portion of long-term loans

Rufjdnsrazau 21 409,708,268 - - - -
Short-term loans
PHAUATHR Y LTINITIU 21 581,533 546,344 744,807 581,533 546,344 744,807

da o . 4
Anerwuagnszmeluniiel
Current portion of finance lease liabilities

Miduldaieans 79,092,856 61,382,801 51,143,464 75,035,120 60,134,999 47,714,324
Income tax payable

Aoniidlasugnelé 56,742,984 42,151,746 49,578,163 55,980,584 40,981,633 48,903,418
Unearned income

wﬁauwguﬁau% 23 254,157,006 148,548,017 145,380,637 250,194,336 144,989,622 142,639,130
Other current liabilities

swwﬁauwguﬁau 2,726,417,683 815,312,050 1,224,915,435 1,462,664,290 835,146,694 1,232,785,775

Total current liabilities

m{ﬁu‘l;/mguﬁz/u

Non-current liabilities

f@uﬁ@uiwwﬂ 21 569,110,553 865,286,290 59,448,890 545,452,053 865,286,290 59,448,890
Long-term loans

Aufazezen) 21 1,495,000,000 - - 1,495,000,000 - -
Long-term debentures

wﬁau@wﬁzyzywﬁmm‘au 21 - 581,533 1,127,877 581,533 1,127,877
Finance lease liabilities

wilgunSiulgsantagad Tk 20 5,085,606 - -
Deferred tax liabilities

ﬂﬁzaﬂﬁumaﬂiﬂa“ﬂﬂwﬁﬂmu 24 74,960,951 98,138,622 89,562,699 74,538,350 96,344,303 88,245,881
Employee benefit obligations

Uﬁzmmmiwﬁauiwzma 25 11,500,000 - - 11,500,000 - -
Long-term provision

Wﬁﬁu@mﬁuﬁﬂu?ﬂ 26 157,752,229 112,068,215 127,732,949 109,782,634 104,655,928 120,869,113
Other non-current liabilities

iauwﬁﬁuisimgwﬁﬂu 2,313,409,339 1,076,074,660 277,872,415 2,236,273,037 1,066,868,054 269,691,761
Total non-current liabilities

FINRUEY 5,039,827,022 1,891,386,710 1,502,787,850 3,698,937,327 1,902,014,748 1,502,477,536
Total liabilities

‘ﬁmﬂmqﬂﬁ:ﬂamumi@uﬂua‘mwﬁwmwmiﬁuﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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JUNITRUNIN SUNITNWANIZAANTT
X . va v Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
AUFUUASEIUVDIND N Y AU
Note

A . 31 sunaN/ 31 suawn/ 1 4n3naw/ 31 sunawN/ 31 suaw/ 1 unaax/
Liabilities and equity

31 December | 31 December 1 January 31 December | 31 December 1 January

2558/2015 2557/2014 2557/2014 2558/2015 2557/2014 2557/2014

(ﬂ%’uﬂy‘lmi) (U5uil3slnai) - (W5uigelna) | (U5ualgelnal)
Restated Restated Restated Restated

(un) (in Baht)

davavganu

Equity

NuTouru 27

Share capital:
v!uf-mml,ﬁﬂu 992,010,177 861,316,848 861,316,848 992,010,177 861,316,848 861,316,848
Authorised share capital
nuﬁaamta:’ﬁﬁmﬁ'g 992,010,177 860,384,157 860,384,157 992,010,177 860,384,157 860,384,157
Issued and paid-up share capital

d’auﬁugja@ﬁﬁumﬁty 28 1,484,159,623 1,020,836,033 1,020,836,033 1,484,159,623 1,020,836,033 1,020,836,033

Premium on ordinary shares

flsazan

Retained earnings

ANFIIUE
Appropriated
qquai’ﬁmmmg‘wma 28 99,201,018 86,761,685 86,761,685 99,201,018 86,761,685 86,761,685
Legal reserve
golall@vnass 3,895,359,090 3,496,162,312 3,306,925,103 3,676,961,487 3,456,979,369 3,274,397,682
Unappropriated
TINEURVBILIEN 6,470,729,908 5,464,144,187 5,274,906,978 6,252,332,305 5,424,961,244 5,242,379,557
Equity attributable of the Company
duldideilafisnaniugs 14 166,999,745 5,720,983 4,923,587 - - -
Non-controlling interests
et CeN ERRLPAN 6,637,729,653 5,469,865,170 5,279,830,565 6,252,332,305 5,424,961,244 5,242 379,557
Total equity

umiiduuazdiuvaciiionu 11,677,556,675 7,361,251,880 6,782,618,415 9,951,269,632 7,326,975,992 6,744,857,093
Total liabilities and equity

a & = a & . . ) .
‘ﬁ‘mﬂmqﬂﬁ:ﬂamumimmﬂumuwmmmwmﬁwuu / The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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JUNIINUIIN JUNITNWANIZAANTS
dwsuilaugadiun 31 suanan dwsulAugaiun 81 sunau

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
AHELNG

For the year ended 31 December For the year ended 31 December

ot

(5uaeln (U5ulgelnai)
Restated Restated

(u11) (in Baht)
718le
Income
e ldannmsvigadenisaning 3,649,509,223 2,268,798,526 3,502,212,477 2,174,971,461
Revenue from sale of real estate
selfanmisligraasiugn Tsson uazdug 38,035,306 15,909,729 17,279,875 15,942,129
Revenue from rendering of warehouse,

factory and other services
Teldanmsldusmaanunasan 62,337,689 62,177,077 62,337,689 62,177,077
Revenue from golf services
ri’wvl,ﬁmmmwmL'Euammm:miamu 5 65,799,351 3,880,533 65,799,351 9,422,623
Gain on sale of long-term investment and investment
ri’ﬂﬁmmﬁ@‘aimﬁm%a 4 133,973,291 - - -
Gain on bargain purchase
i?’WSJVLéWJS‘H 46,864,141 34,131,729 19,172,377 33,251,044
Other income
el 3,996,519,001 2,384,897,594 3,666,801,769 2,295,764,334
Total income

aldae
Expenses
FununsadenTuning 2,537,542,260 1,346,617,427 2,451,260,976 1,296,398,666
Cost of sale of real estate
ﬁunumﬂ%"ﬁmﬁaauﬁwLLa:IﬁammLam%miﬁ'u 20,357,920 4,143,643 4,143,643 4,143,643
Cost of rendering of warehouse, factory and

others services
Fununslininisaumunadn 51,134,454 40,855,098 51,134,454 40,855,098
Cost of golf services
anlganalunsang 30 259,667,055 159,989,043 253,189,703 155,438,878
Selling expenses
anlganglunsuinis 31 331,258,076 257,703,158 321,722,144 252,735,298
Administrative expenses
ﬁwqum\ﬁmﬁﬁu 34 35,899,522 3,417,370 30,587,955 3,417,236
Finance costs
swaldane 3,235,859,287 1,812,725,739 3,112,038,875 1,752,988,819
Total expenses

a'mmj@m@Qqumnlﬁuamﬂuu%ﬁwiw 13 (15,185,457) (15,743,259) - -
Share of loss of investments in associates

mlsnaunmadule 745,474,257 556,428,596 554,762,894 542,775,515
Profit before income tax expense

aldaemiEdnle 35 (117,106,339) (108,029,544) (107,262,629) (102,099,381)
Income tax expense
il msul 628,367,918 448,399,052 447,500,265 440,676,134
Profit for the year

. & = 4
ﬂﬂim@mumm&mau - - - -
Other comprehensive income

mlsidaiaSasandmsud 628,367,918 448,399,052 447,500,265 440,676,134
Total comprehensive income for the year

‘ﬁmf_lmqﬁﬁ:ﬂamumi@uﬂua‘mwﬁwmwmilﬁuﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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JUNITNUIIN JUNITNWANIZAANTS
Sy Ny = S o A
dmeullaugaiun 31 sunau d@ndRugaiun 31 sunax
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
ANELHAG)

For the year ended 31 December For the year ended 31 December

Note
2558/2015 2557/2014 2558/2015 2557/2014

- (ﬂ%‘uﬂi\ﬂﬂsj) - (ﬂ%Uﬂ§q1“ﬁ)
Restated Restated

(uM) (in Baht)

nsudstfunnls
Profit attributable to:
sanfiduzacuim 626,714,925 447,331,656 447,500,265 440,676,134
Owners of the Company
dm‘ﬁlﬁummdmﬂﬁL%amﬂﬁa"wmamuﬂu 1,652,993 1,067,396 -
Non-controlling interests
mlsdwnsull 628,367,918 448,399,052 447,500,265 440,676,134

Profit for the year

nsuthiuilsdiaadanu
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
d]u‘ﬁﬂu“ﬂmu%@% 626,714,925 447,331,656 447,500,265 440,676,134
Owners of the Company
dauﬁlﬁwﬂmdmﬂﬁL%’amﬂﬁéwmamu@u 1,652,993 1,067,396 - -
Non-controlling interests
mlsawSanudmsull 628,367,918 448,399,052 447,500,265 440,676,134

Total comprehensive income for the year

ilssiadiu
Earnings per share
TUNUFIU 37 0.71 0.52 0.52 0.51

Basic earnings per share

‘ﬁ‘mﬂmqﬂﬁ:ﬂamumi@m@udmwﬁwmwmﬁlﬁuﬁ, / The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

s1evuls:91U 2558
USEn JuAuIARENTS $1iA (UKTBU) 45



‘Sjuswelels [eloueUl) sey) Jo Jed [eiBelul ue ae sejou BulAuedwoooe ay] / ﬁ?wﬁrcpzmFomr%mmﬁmf@wrcgvgmcﬁ?,@rﬁmgﬁ

102 1equada LE Je adueleg
0.,1'698°691‘G €86°02L'G L8LYYLYOv'S gLe‘e9lioer'e 689°19.°08 €€0°9€8°020°} LG}'v8e‘098 LGGT MBLLNT |LE UNE 10 BEUIdBLER

Jeak ay} Joj awoou| aAIsusyaIdwiod [ejo]

2506688y 96€°290°} 959°1e€ LYy 959°Lee‘ LYY - - - [reuLpLepIBmnioLEL|LUNLE
Hoid
250°66€ 8y 96€°£90°} 959°LEE LYY 9G9'LeC' LYy - - - gLy

JeaA ay} 10} swoou| sAIsuayaldwo)

_.w;wrarmwwm;b;,_;gsr?w.rrc
A 4 > o

Auedwog ay} JO SIBUMO O} SUOHNQUISIP €101

=10

AJBIPISQNS JO SIOUMO 0} PUBPIAI]

(zvv'v9e‘sse) (000'022) (2vv'v60'852) (2vv*v60'852) - - - njteuhuniimeseesoeeLunes

(000°'022) (000°'0£2) - - - - - RERUALTRLAARE R SMAINDT

e

Auedwo) 8y} Jo SIBUMO 0} puspIAI]

(L¥v'v60'852) - (Lvv'¥60'852) (Lvv'¥60'852) - - - 8¢ WAL ELHABEH W OHAINGT

e s

Aueduiod 8u) JO SIBUMO O} SUONNGUSI]
nieuhuinineseesreu
102 Arenuer | 1e souefeg
§95‘088°6/2's  /8S°EZ6'Y B/6'906'7/2'S  €0L'SZ6'90E’E  SB9°19/‘08 €60°988°020°k  LG}¥BE‘098 1552 MULEUIE | UNE 15 CEUINGER
102 Jequieoeq LE Papus JeoA
/652 RBLENT L€ UNLOBHEINEULY
(yeg un) (wLrm) _ -
sisesolul Auedwog ey
JO sisumo |lendeo aieys

Aunba 0} e|qeInquNe anesal [ebaT] dn-pred

[eloL Aynb3 pejeudoiddeun pLenBurLe wniwe.d pue penss|

b [
ey UFEMDCR LepBLb} BB vmw_&u#g aleys LenzeLE

8lON

N N ouIRLIRY
DEGHEE RpIvNLp nuesl sBujuies paureloy nLBeR zunuEeU
} By e ueun Ll u

ree DERHELE DBRHELNEE repzIe|LY nyinep $w_.$mm§_.$
SJUSWAJE]S [BIoUBUI} Pejepljosuo)

MEEHMELUD

N

MK REAL ESTATE

selBIpISANS s} pue paliwl] Auedwo) 2ljand Juswdojereq o1e1sT [BeY “M'IN /RRRUALILINN (ML) BULE ELUTUIDEHE WAL

A)nba ur sagueyd jo syuswialels : :wom\uaooa:owom:__:am:_wEocm_.:c

M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

46



‘SjuslLIa)e]s [eloueUl 8say) Jo Led [eibejul ue ale sejou BulAuedwoooe ay| / mﬁwﬁrc;g@vaﬁﬁnmﬁmf@wfc;;mc“w_.&m\zarz%

£59°62.°2€9°9 G17/‘666°99 | 806°62.°0L1‘9 060°65€°G68‘C 810°102°66 £29°65 V81| 121010266
- - - (ese'ser'el) eee'eer'eh - -
816°29€‘829 £66°259°} G267 1L‘929 626712929 S - =
816°/98°829 £66'259'} G267 /929 G26'vH/'929 = - =
G95‘961°6€S 69/°629°65 96.°0,8°6.LE (v18820°G12) S 065°€2E‘€9Y 020°929° L€}
69/°629°65 69/°629°65 = - = - =
69/'G29'65 692'G29'65 = - = - =
96.°0/8°6.€ - 96.°0/8°6.€ (v18°820°G12) = 065‘€2€‘€9Y 020°929°L€}
(r18'8L0'G12) - (¥18'820'G12) (r18'820'G12) S - -
019'676'76S - 019'6v6'765 - = 065628691 020°929°LEk
0L1°G98°69%‘S €86°02L‘S L8P LYoY'S zLe2oLior'e 68919208 €€0°968°020° 15148€098

PERTLE
h{43

Buljjonuod

\|
rebres

ELHLEIRN] U

o
mm._mv._u\_uﬁ
PERILE

edwo) ay}
Jo sisumo
0} 9|qeinquue
Aunb3
UFLMOER
b [
nieyy
DERHLIENEE

SjUsWelEls [efou
MEEMMELUMD

(yeg u) (uLrm)

pereudoiddeun
LeRLe|H 08

aAlesal [ebe
RLeuBurLL
seeLpnit

Sbujures paureley

repRIe|LY
J PoIepijosuo)

wnjwauid
eleys
b [
HALBER
nuiner

lendeo aeys
dn-pred
pue penss|
LufIzeLE
5 4
RWNUBRU
b ”
HUNBLINU
Fkg

G102 lequwede( L€ 1e eouejeg
8GSC NULLNG | € UNE 13 BEUINBLER
aAlesal [ebo| 0} Joysuel ]
8c mrzt,mcxrs_.éw_.m_d_,:mw
Jeak ay) Jo} 8wooul sAIsuayaidwod [ejo]
_..m;\m,»fm«wm,_@m,_:,;@raﬁrt;nw
Hjoid
gLy
JeaA ey} Jo} awooul aAIsusyaidwo)
::wc,rmwwm,_@:._:,ssrsﬁrc
o e RGEIOL &
Aunba u) Apjoauip spiooal ‘SIOUMO UM SUOlOBSUR) [B1O |
:Wmcmvm_ﬁ:om:zvwsagwcssn_\.umarwg_ﬂm:cacwrcmrwzww
e TR shae & IR TS
selelpIsgns ul }salejul diysieumo ui sebueyo [ejo]
mmm;&w«;ﬁmm%eﬁfm:ﬁomEﬁam_.:wrcxnw
|0J1u0d Ul 8bueyo e
2l o@EimmE;@Qn@m%fmm@H
UM S1SeJelul BUI01U09-UOU JO UoNISINboY

Z@Q@@@S&f@%@ﬁ$ﬂ§6ﬁ$mmvamh¥@n_>wrc
S = R =

Areipisgns uj }sauisjul diysisumo uj sabueyd
am_aém;ﬁmm%aﬁ%ﬁﬂvﬁ.&:m_m_.swrc

Auedwo? sy} Jo s1oUMO 0} suoinquisip pue AQ suonnqliuoy [e10]
niteufiuinimepeepopeLuzenmiteufiutengojunimgiee

AurdwoD ey} Jo SIBUMO O} PUBPIAIQ

8e UAEMDELHABEH A OIS

seJeys AJBUIPIO JO &nss|

2y foreLismiarems
AuBdWOD BUJ JO SIBUMO O} SUORNGLISIP PUE AQ SUONGHIUOD
nieuhuinineseesreLusemnijeubuLeneeunime

Aunba uy Apoalip paplodal ‘S1I9UMO YUM suonoesuel |
nieulrenneLzI B RO UMM IUNAEERTURLUBLE
heu BLa gnaniesny

G102 Aenuep | je eoueeg

8GGZ MBLEUR | UHE 13 BEUINBWVER
G10Z Jequiada( L papus Jesp
8552 RULLHT L€ UNLORNELTEULE

310N
louirLIY

selelpIsaNS sl pue paliwl Auedwo) llgnd 1uswdojers( e1e1sT [eey M /RERUMLMZEN (MELWNE) BULE ELUZWUINUTLE UFEM

Ayinba ui sa8ueyo Jo spuswAlelS : hiicuaerRNCLARNINBENISLUALEING

47

=910 2558
A (Unou)

$1891UUs:

USGn GuAvIARES $1AA



N

MK REAL ESTATE

ve 196ver'S 69€°6/6°951'S 68919208 ££0°968°020° 1S1‘98€‘098
YEL9L9'0bY veL‘9L9‘0vY S - S
YE1L'9L9°07Y Ye1L'9L9°07Y = - =
(Lv+'¥60°'852) (L¥¥'¥60°852) = - =
(L¥¥'¥60'852) (Ly¥'v60'852) = - = 8¢
/85'6/8'2v2'S 289'/66/2'C G89°19/°98 £60°968°020° /S1'788°098

Aunbe [e10]
nieuNrELHLENEL
Hepk i

(yeg u) (wLrm)

pajeudoiddeun aAesal [ebe

£eiLL] 4] 8B BLreuburLLbRELENL

sbujuies pauieley
repzEe LY
SJUSWAJE]S [elouBUl} efelades

ELUBUSLMBINRIELUTTD

wnjwsaud aleys

niaLBERNnUmnELE

fendeo aseys
dn-pred pue panss|
LETRELLRTIUCEBY
" ° “H

nhneenh
uneg

‘SjusWale]s [BloueUl 8say) Jo Led [eibajul ue ale sejou BulAuedwoooe ay| / ﬁ%@?c;3@var\%nmﬁ@;wﬁrc;g@cMw_.&Emgﬁ

102 Jequeds( |§ 1e soueeg
LGGC MULLNG L€ UNE Y8 BEWIRBLER

Jeak ay} Joj awooul sAIsuayaidwod [ejo]
unwsrm«wﬁsairsrﬁw._,rcxpw
LAl ° » » °
Hjoid
gLy
Jeak 8y} Joj awooul sAisuayaidwio)

[rguLpEepIBIniLEL) LY
Ldie] o e = °

Auedwo) ey} jJo siouMO 0} suolnquisip [e101
nieuhunimepeepepeLunee
AuBdWwog euj o SIBUMO O} PUBPIAI]
UALTORLAARERIA] SMHINDT
Auedwog ey} Jo S18UMO O} SUOANQUISIC
nieubuininepeesoeeLy
v10g Asenuer | Je eoueleg
1662 MBLEUN | UNE 12 BEUINGLER
¥102 J0quIs08Q L€ Pepus JeoA

552 RULLHE LE UNLLENELTEULE

seleIpIsang s} pue palwl] Auedwo) 2ljand Juswdojersq 81e1sT [BeY “M'IN /RERUALMZEN (ML) BULE ELUSKUIDLHE WAL

Ayinba ui saBueyo Jo suswalelS : hicuaerNCELARNINBENISLUADEING

M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

48



‘sjuswalels [eloueUl 8say) Jo Led [eibelul ue eie selou BulAuedwoooe ay| / mﬁwﬁrc;vw@pvmﬁﬁnmimﬁwﬁfcﬂgmcﬁ?@%arx&

49

(urou)

910 2558

$1691UUs:

USGn GuAvIARES $1AA

G102 Jequedeq g Je eoueeg

S0€‘2e€°252°9 L8Y°196°9,9°€ 810°102°66 £€29°65 78" LL14010°266 8552 MULENG 1€ UL 13 BEMIDLLER
oAlesal _mmo_ 0} Jajsuel |
- (cee'6er'cH) eee'eerCH - - 8c RLEKBURLLORELEMHE]
Jeak ay} Jo} swooul aAlsuayaldwod [ejo]
§92°005° LY §92°005° LY - - - [EreuLpLepiominiioLLL LuReS
Hoid
§92'00G' Ly §92'00G' Ly - - - gLy

JeaA ay} 1o} awoou] eAIsusyaidwo)

_.n_.F:,_\RFWEGD,_#_#S_\EW._,_\C
Ldie] ° » » °

Auedwog 8y} Jo SIBUMO 0} SUOINQLISIP [B10]

96/°0/8'62€ (r18°820512) - 065°62€‘€9Y 020'929° L€} niteubuininepeesoeeLunee

=190

Auedwog 8} JO SIBUMO 0} PUSPIAIC]

(v18'8L0'G}2) (v18'8L0'G}2) - - - 8¢ WALTARTLHABEHIA] SMI IS

saJeys AJeulpio Jo anss|

019676765 - - 065°c2e€9y 020929°LEL /2y mu\nnrmﬁwrx,mz
Auedwog ay) JO SIBUMO 0} SUONNQLISIA
nieubuininepeeporeLy
G10g Arenuer | je eoueleg
2 196'ver's 69€'6/6°95¥'€ 68919298 €€0°9€8°020°L LS1'¥8€098 8GGC NBLEUN | K.;\m\ 4 eEuirLLER
G102 Jequiaoaq |§ Papus Jesp
8662 MULLNG L UngwinpIneuLy

(yeg up (L) _ .
pejeudoiddeun oanesal [ebo [endeo aseys

pLEuBURLBORELENE wnjwsaid a1eys

Aunbe rejol £eiLLL] )03 dn-pred pue panss|

nheuMeRnLERLE
HEeGN !

SBuluIEe paurEloy HuLBeRNUINES RETIRLLERETIUREL
b 1 .
REaEE)LY nineeinii
SJusWale}s [eloueU] ojeiedes

ELUEUSLMBINBIELUITD

selBIpISANS s} pue paliwl] Auedwo) 2ljand Juswdojereq o1e1sT [BeY “M'IN /RBRUALMLIUN (ML) BULE ELUTUWIDEHE WAL

A)nba ur sa8ueyd jo syuswialels : :wo,c\...aooasowom:__:am:_mpcocm__:c




N

MK REAL ESTATE

vuns:lidamuda : State of cash flow

PIEN NUAILAKZNIT NG (NA1TU) LazL3Emeas/ MK, Real Estate Development Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

JUMIRIUTIN sunsuanIzians
dminilaugaiud 31 funex dminllaugaiud 31 Funex
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
R For the year ended 31 December For the year ended 31 December

WL 2558/2015 2557/2014 2558/20 2557/2014
Wiuilyeln Yiuilaslnai
Restated Restated

(u1n) (in Baht)

NITUFRTUFANAANTINAUAUIU
Cash flows from operating activities

flsdnTutl 628,367,918 448,399,052 447,500,265 440,676,134
Profit for the year
BRI
Adjustments for
ALRaNTIA AT AFATITUNe 39,850,215 25,629,691 25,433,327 25,623,592
Depreciation and amortisation
nAUTIEMIARYAAARWHBYY - (23,865,084) - (23,865,084)
Reversal of impairment loss on assets
MenuanmMIfasaiuasuluniEn N - - 1,988,380 -
Impairment loss on investment in associate
flsannsdesaesada (133,973,291) - - -
Gain on bargain purchase
ﬁﬂ%mﬂmﬁwﬂwqﬂmzﬂ (41,161,780) (195,601) (115,305) (27,378)
Gain on disposal of equipment
ﬁw%ammﬁwﬂmﬁuamm:mma (47,348,522) - (47,348,522) -
Gain on sale of long-term investment
eldengdniiyd (887,028) (894,197) (887,028) (894,197)
Realisation of deferred rental income
aandesu (1,925,545) (478,419) (12,930,342) (468,586)
Interest income
Sudunasy (839,442) (3,411,947) (5,520,487) (8,954,037)
Dividend income
ﬁammwwmumnﬁuamﬂuu‘iﬂwiw 15,185,457 15,743,259 - -
Share of loss in associates
enldananalszlomineineu 9,638,244 9,670,925 9,557,030 9,193,424
Employee benefit obligations
5unumamuﬁu 35,899,522 3,417,370 30,587,955 3,417,236
Finance costs
Minduld 117,106,339 108,029,544 107,262,629 102,099,381
Income tax expenses

619,912,087 582,044,593 555,527,902 546,800,485
mawaguudadduduninduazniiand e
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Tassmsadinsunindssninanswan 910,164,913 (631,789,603) 842,080,087 (620,503,682)
Real estate projects under development
ARuLazaWawINa e (553,325,802) 7,823,460 319,599,197 6,997,519
Land and development costs for sale
Sudaanadanan 9,369,500 (8,117,000) 9,369,500 (8,117,000)
Deposits for purchase of land
anwilnsi (106,132,233) - - -
Trade accounts receivable
annitudunduwiuniomai 59,543,000 (59,543,000) 59,543,000 (59,543,000)
Receivable from expropriation to be state highway
Aundndnguioudn (3,341,473) (2,808,153) (2,939,483) (2,714,568)
Other current assets
Aundnd laingudsudu (4,766,596) 24,721,587 133,187 24,721,588
Other non-current assets
Ewdinnadn (34,954,949) 11,949,867 (26,913,521) 8,418,475
Trade accounts payable
i au (1,000,000) (30,495,431) (1,000,000) (30,495,431)
Payables for purchase of land
AU UIDUDY 118,229,151 (3,915,172) 121,233,443 (5,227,429)
Other current liabilities
enaUszlonininegu (33,280,900) (1,095,002) (31,362,982) (1,095,002)
Employee benefit obligations paid
wilduldvyuisudu 1,592,307 (14,777,707) 6,013,734 (15,326,158)
Other non-current liabilities
Suaalanian (1w Aanmsdudiueu 982,009,005 (126,001,561) 1,851,284,064 (156,084,203)
Cash generated from (used in) operating activities
g HIuLE (103,968,128) (100,148,151) (97,316,417) (91,931,951)
Income tax paid
Suaagndlauan (14llu) Aanssudniueu 878,040,877 (226,149,712) 1,753,967,647 (248,016,154)

Net cash from (used in) operating activities
NIUARUAANNAANTTHAIY

Cash flows from investing activities
%/Uﬂamﬁﬂ 1,925,545 478,419 1,845,137 468,586
Interest received

‘mﬂam@;ﬁﬁxﬂamumiﬁmﬁudmwﬁwaﬂ\mmﬁtﬁuﬂ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SURUITUNG

Dividends received
Suaedratiadogaia

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary
AFINITUNINAL NN TAIUANT Y

Increase in investment properties

F -

FegunIm

Purchase of equipment
sauSuygennansdineniindu

Increase in office building improvement

4o oA

Foaunindldfisnnn

Purchase of intangible assets
Suaeiuanmadmihaglnan

Proceeds from disposal of equipment
WUFASUAINNITNHUIBENTNTLT

Proceeds from disposal of leasehold right
Suaeiuanmsdmihaadmi3unindianiaamu
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
RuansuaNMsd o uamusseze

Sale of long-term investment
Sulsfinszezduniiamsfiisadasiuinau
Increase in short-term loan to related party
Surnaotumaduiddediielunisldanas
Decrease in deposits pledged as collateral
SuamuinngIanas (Wsin)

Decrease (increase) in current investments
SuadrggniannmataSuamuluisnim

Net cash outflow on acquisition of associate
SudrggnianmataSuasulusisndes
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary
maldandedmléifenldfsnaniven
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Quaagndlauan (14ll) Aanssuasmu
Net cash from (used in) investing activities

NITHATUANAINNANIIHAANITU

Cash flows from financing activities
NBFEUNUNIINITU

Finance costs paid

PRI UTUNE

Dividends paid

’ﬁﬁ:ﬁuﬁuﬁgmmz%u

Repayment of short-term borrowings
ﬁmiﬂLﬁuﬂ@%m:@uﬁjﬁm:&l:gwﬂﬂamﬁumn@mﬁu%u
Increase in bank overdrafts and short-term loans
dww’ﬁws:wﬁaumwﬁzyzywwhﬂﬁﬁu
Finance lease payments
Suaaiutunasasanianisiiieidaeii
Receipt of advances from related party
Suaeiuanniufiuszozen

Proceeds from long-term borrowings
DrzAutudinszezen

Repayment of long-term borrowings
Ruaafuanmsoanaiminediug
Proceeds from issue of debentures
RJuaaandldunanfanssuianidn

Net cash from financing activities

RuaauasnamafisuirnIuaanuiiu (anag) and
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Sugawazagmaieumiduge o Juil 1 ananau
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
WuaauazaeMfigunduan o Jui 31 sunau
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

dayaRadndmiunszuaian

Supplement disclosures of cash flows information
ansildlatuan

Non-cash transaction

gaanitdneiszandunulassnisodaniiuning
Outstanding debts arising from property development

‘wmaquﬂizﬂau\‘iUﬂ’liﬁm‘ﬂud’mwﬁwaﬂa‘umﬁfé%ﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

sunsiusndmiullaugaiun

31 Fwaau

Consolidated financial statements
UETHIA For the year ended 31 December

VN HUAILAKINIT A1NA (HA174) wazUIEmMeae/ M K. Real Estate Development Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

sunsiwanziantsdmiullaugaiun

31 fwaaw

Separate financial statements
For the year ended 31 December

pete 2558/20 2557/2014 2558/201 2557/2014

Surlgdlns)
Restated

(u1n) (in Baht)

Suilgdln)
Restated

839,442 3,411,947 5,520,487 8,954,037
(371,387,499) B - ,
(2,076,077,504) : - .
(22,296,248) (10,217,138) (22,296,248) (10,217,138)
(937,014) - (937,014) -
(469,915) (201,332) (469,915) (201,332)
115,430 200,258 115,430 32,034
30,923,146 , - ,
144,378,134 B - ,
58,896,942 - 58,896,942 -

_ - (1,223,000,000) -

76,218 4,051,486 288,124 4,066,352
(366,210,096) 139,749,339 (366,210,096) 139,749,339
- (20,321,485) - (20,321,485)

- - (1,332,499,977) -

159,625,769 - - -
(2,440,597,650) 117,151,494 (2,878,747,130) 122,530,393
(97,604,505) (49,637,179) (90,681,979) (49,637,045)
(215,303,814) (258,364,447) (215,078,814) (258,094,447)
(304,076,864) - - -
936,706,512 349,825,500 100,263,885 349,825,500
(546,344) (744,807) (546,344) (744,807)

- - 98,034,109 14,626,614

451,395,140 613,825,842 427,736,640 613,825,842
(425,576,730) (554,653,600) (425,576,730) (554,653,600)
1,495,000,000 - 1,495,000,000 -
1,839,993,395 100,251,309 1,389,150,767 115,148,057
277,436,622 (8,746,909) 264,371,284 (10,337,704)
15,804,929 24,551,838 13,789,012 24,126,716

6 293,241,551 15,804,929 278,160,296 13,789,012
161,196 131,683 95,960 122,874

s1evulsz91l 2558

USGN DuAVIARENS $17 (UMTDU) 51
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Notes to the financial statements

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language. These English language

financial statements have been prepared from the Thai language statutory financial statements, and were approved and authorized for issue by the

Board of Directors on 25 February 2016.

1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(@)

92

General information
M.K. Real Estate Development Public Company Limited, the “Company”, is incorporated in Thailand and has its registered office at 719 M.K.
Building, Bantadtong Road, Wang Mai, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330.

The Company registered the conversion of its legal status from a company limited into a public company limited under the Public Company
Limited Act with the Ministry of Commerce on 15 December 1993.

The Company’s major shareholder during the financial year was Mr. Suthep Wongvorazathe (17.9% shareholding).

The principal activities of the Company are land and building development including land sales, house and condominium construction for the
Company’s own projects, building and parking rental, and golf course business. Details of the Company’s subsidiary as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 are given in note 12.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS); guidelines promulgated by the Federation
of Accounting Professions (“FAP”); and applicable rules and regulations of the Thai Securities and Exchange Commission.

The FAP has issued new and revised TFRS effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. The initial application
of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in changes in certain of the Group’s accounting policies. These changes have no material effect
on the financial statements.

In addition to the above new and revised TFRS, the FAP has issued a number of other new and revised TFRS which are effective for annual
financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and have not been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Those
new and revised TFRS that are relevant to the Group’s operations are disclosed in note 41.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on an alternative
basis on each reporting date.

ltems Measurement bases

Liabilities for cash-settled shared-based payment arrangements Fair value

Mutual fund held for trading Fair value

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation, limited as explained
in note 3 (I)

Functional and Presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in

Thai Baht has been rounded in the notes to the financial statements to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

Use of judgements and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustments to the amounts

recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 3 (q), 35 Current and deferred taxation
Note 4 Business combination
Note 9 Valuation of real estate projects under development
Note 10 Valuation of land and development costs for sale
Note 24 Employee benefit obligations
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Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that
has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the CFO.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties
to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of TFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such
valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group Audit Committee.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

® Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

@® Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly.

® Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

Note 16 Investment properties

Note 39 Financial instruments

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interests in associates

Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method for all business combinations when control is transferred to the Group other than those with entities
under common control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on which control is
transferred to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred from one
party to another.

Gain on bargain purchase is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the recognised amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
all measured as of the acquisition date.

Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the
acquiree, and equity interests issued by the Group. Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration.

A contingent liability of the acquiree is assumed in a business combination only if such a liability represents a present obligation and arises
from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably.

The Group measures any non-controlling interest (“NCI”) at its proportionate interest in the identifiable net assets of the acquiree.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as legal fees, and other professional and consulting
fees are expensed as incurred.

s1evulsz91l 2558
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Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Interests in equity—accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates.

Associates
Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating
policies.

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognised initially at cost, which includes transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of equity—accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income or expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-term investments.
Bank overdraft that are repayable on demand are a component of financing activities for the purpose of the statements of cash flows.

Trade and other accounts receivable
Trade and other accounts receivable are stated at their invoice value less allowance for doubtful accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and future expectations of customer payments.
Bad debts are written off when incurred.

Real estate projects under development and land and development costs for sale

Real estate projects under development and land and development costs for sale are projects for the development of properties with the
intention of sale in the ordinary course of business. They are stated at the lower of cost plus, where appropriate, a portion of attributable profit
and estimated net realisable value, net of progress billings. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less costs to be incurred
in selling the properties.

The cost of real estate projects under development and land and development cost for sale comprises specifically identified costs, including
acquisition costs, development expenditure, borrowing costs and other related expenditure. Borrowing costs payable on loans funding real
estate projects under development and land and development costs for sale real estate development projects are capitalised, on a specific
identification basis, as part of the cost of the property until the completion of development.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using the cost method.

Investments in associates in the consolidated financial statements are accounted for using the equity method.

Investment in mutual funds
Investment in mutual funds, which are marketable securities held for trading, are classified as current assets and are stated at fair value, with

any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in other equity securities

Equity securities which are not marketable are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Disposal of investments
On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

If the Group disposes of part of its holding of a particular investment, the deemed cost of the part sold is determined using the weighted

average method applied to the carrying value of the total holding of the investment.
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Investment properties
Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rental income, for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self-constructed investment
property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, and other costs directly attributable to bringing the investment property to a working
condition for its intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each property. The estimated useful lives

are as follows:

Warehouse / factory buildings term of the lease, 28 - 30 years
Buildings on rental land term of the lease, 25 - 30 years
Rental buildings 10 years
Facility on rental land 10 years

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software

that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components)

of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net in profit or loss.

Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group substantially assumes all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Property,
plant and equipment acquired by way of finance leases is capitalised at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance

charges are charged directly to the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a part of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced

part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property,

plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Golf course 30 Years
Buildings, club house and building car wash 20 Years
Machinery and equipment, equipment-car wash and equipment-golf course 5 Years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 Years
Vehicles 4-5  Years
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No depreciation is provided on freehold land or assets under construction.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Amortisation
Amortisation is based on the cost of the asset less its residual value.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from the date that they

are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Software licenses 5 Years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or are not

yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent

of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to

an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods in respect of other non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Interest-bearing liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over

the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Trade and other accounts payable
Trade and other accounts payables are stated at cost.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided.

Defined benefit plans
The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



(m)

(n)

(o)

()

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognized immediately in OCI. The Group determines the
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain
or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognizes costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the end of the reporting period, then
they are discounted.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Revenues
Revenue excludes value added taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts and volume rebates

Revenue from sale of real estate
Sales are recognized as revenue when the ownerships have been transferred to buyers.

Services rendered
Service income is recognised as services are provided.

Investments
Revenue from investments comprises rental income from investment properties and dividend and interest income from investments and bank
deposits.

Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income.

Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues.

Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions and contingent consideration.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
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Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease

adjustment is confirmed.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific asset is the subject of
a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if

the arrangement conveys to the Group the right to control the use of the underlying asset.

Atinception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement
into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Group concludes for a finance lease that
itis impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying
asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance charge on the liability is recognised using the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Income tax
Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether
additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on
its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions
and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a

determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax

liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or

loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Segment reporting
Segment results that are reported to the Group’s CEO (the chief operating decision maker) include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company’s

headquarters), head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

Acquisition of subsidiary
The Extraordinary Shareholders’ meeting held on 26 August 2015 resolved to approve the Company’s investment in Prospect Development

Co., Ltd. by purchasing 100% of the total 120 million issued and fully paid shares in from the existing shareholders at par value of Baht 10
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per share, totaling Baht 1,200 million. The Company will pay part of the purchase price by the issue of 131,620,020 ordinary shares of the
Company, with par value of Baht 1 per share, at Baht 6.15 per share, totaling Baht 809,500,023. The remaining Baht 390,499,977 of the
purchase price will be paid by cash.

On 26 October 2015, the Group obtained control of Prospect Development Co., Ltd. its principal activities are develop and provide rental
service of warehouse and factory and relevant services, by purchasing 100% of the total 120 million issued and fully paid shares from the
existing shareholders at par value of Baht 10 per share, totaling Baht 1,200 million. The Company paid part of the purchase price by the issue of
131.62 million ordinary shares of the Company. The closing rate at 26 October 2015 is 4.52 Baht / share totaling Baht 594.95 million. The remaining
Baht 390.50 million of the purchase price are paid by cash. As a result, the Group’s equity interest in Prospect Development Co., Ltd. is 100%.
For the two months to 31 December 2015, Prospect Development Co., Ltd. contributed revenue of Baht 64.21 million and profit of Baht 29.94
million to the Group’s results. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2015, management estimates that consolidated revenue would
have been Baht 271.13 million and consolidated profit for the year would have been Baht 79.28 million. In determining these amounts,
management has assumed that the fair value adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on the date of acquisition would have been
the same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2015.

The following summarises the major classes of consideration transferred, and the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date:

Consideration transferred

Equity instruments issued
The fair value of the ordinary shares issued was based on the listed share price of the Company at 26 October 2015 of Baht 4.52 per share
(closing price).

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
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The following fair values have been determined on a provisional basis:

The fair value of property, plant and equipment, leasehold right, investment property and purchase price allocation have been determined by

an independent valuation.

The Group determined the fair value of identifiable assets and recognised the difference between the fair value of identifiable assets and the
consideration transferred as “gain on bargain purchase” of Baht 133.97 million. The fair value of identifiable assets and allocation of purchase
price has been assessed provisionally and is subject to adjustment within one year from the acquisition date, as specified by Thai Financial

Reporting Standard 3 (revised 2014) Business Combinations.

The Group is continuing its review of these matters during the measurement period. If new information obtained within one year from the
acquisition date about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date identifies adjustments to the above provisional fair values,

or any additional assets or liabilities that existed at the acquisition date, then the acquisition accounting will be revised.

Acquisition-related costs
The Group did not incur acquisition-related costs related to external legal fees and due diligence costs.

5 Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or joint control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals

or other entities.

Relationships with subsidiaries and associates are described in notes 11 and 12. Relationship with key management and other related parties
were as follows:

Name of entities Country of incorporation/ Nature of relationships
nationality
Mr. Suthep Wongvorazathe Thai Major shareholder, 17.9% shareholding
Dura Floor Corporation Co., Ltd. Thailand Related company,13.55% shareholding
and Mancon Company Limited hold 1.71% shareholding

Sinnsuk Properties Co., Ltd. Thailand Related company, 15% shareholding

Thai Advance Panel Technology Thailand Related company, 4.65% shareholding

Co., Ltd.
Supalai Northeast Co., Ltd. Thailand Related company, 0.44% shareholding
Key management personnel Thailand Persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and

controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any
director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Group.

The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies

Rental and service income Market price

Dividend income Declared dividend payment
Interest income 2.50 - 5.25% per annum
Purchase construction materials Market price

Purchase land servitude Agreed price

Sale land servitude Agreed price

Servitude compensation Agreed price

Significant transactions for the years ended 31 December with related parties were as follows:
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Balances as at 31 December with related parties were as follows:

During the third quarter of 2015, the Company sold its entire investment in Haadyai Nakarin Co., Ltd. to Supalai Plc. for Baht 58.90 million.

The cost of investment was Baht 11.55 million. The Group and the Company recognised a gain on the sale of Baht 47.35 million.
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Movements during the years ended 31 December of short-term to/from related party were as follows:

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

(in thousand Baht)
Short-term loans to related parties

Subsidiaries
At 1 January - - - -

Increase - - 1,223,000 -
At 31 December - - 1,223,000 -
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

(in thousand Baht)
Advances from related parties

Subsidiaries
Mancon Company Limited - - 130,697 34,620
Buntudthong Pattana Co., Ltd. - - 882 -
MK71 Company Limited - - 1,075 -

- - 132,654 34,620
Movements during the years ended 31 December of advances from related parties were as follows:

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)
Advances from related parties
Subsidiaries
At 1 January - - 34,620 19,993
Increase - - 147,374 80,479
Decrease - - (49,340) (65,852)
At 31 December - - 132,654 34,620
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)
Trade accounts payable
Other related party
Durafloor Company Limited 5,937 10,323 5,843 9,391
Director
Return land and reverse to discount payable - (5,993) - (5,993)
6 Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January

2015 2014 2014 2015 2014 2014
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(in thousand Baht)

Cash on hand 1,877 699 695 895 687 683
Cashier cheques 13,614 8,578 14,695 13,614 8,578 14,695
Cash at banks - current accounts 138,126 2,106 2,878 127,791 104 2,467
Cash at banks - savings accounts 139,625 4,421 6,138 135,860 4,420 6,136
Highly liquid short-term

investments - - 145 - - 145
Total 293,242 15,804 24,551 278,160 13,789 24,126
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Cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

7 Current investments

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014 2015 2014 2014
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(in thousand Baht)
Mutual fund held for trading 396,211 30,001 169,749 396,211 30,001 169,749

Current investments of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

Movements during the years ended 31 December of mutual fund held for trading which are marketable securities were as follows:

At 1 January

Purchases during the year
Sales during the year
Valuation adjustment

At 31 December

8 Trade accounts receivable

Other parties

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Bad and doubtful debts expense
for the year

Aging analyses for trade accounts receivable were as follows:

Within credit terms
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Consolidated financial statements

2015

Separate financial statements

2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)
30,001 169,750 30,001 169,750
3,195,500 307,000 3,195,500 307,000
(2,836,193) (446,894) (2,836,193) (446,894)
6,903 145 6,903 145
396,211 30,001 396,211 30,001

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2015 2015

2014 2014

(in thousand Baht)
118,981 - -

118,981 - -

Consolidated financial statements

2015

Separate financial statements

2014 2015

2014

(in thousand Baht)
118,981 - -

118,981 - -

Trade accounts receivable of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

Real estate projects under development

Land and construction developing for sales
Houses and sample houses

Construction materials

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)
3,109,001 4,411,976 3,103,878 4,334,469
756,977 286,482 740,580 277,060
1,152 721 1,152 715
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Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014
3,867,130 4,699,179 3,845,610 4,612,244
Less allowance for impairment (3,261) (3,261) (3,261) (3,261)
Net 3,863,869 4,695,918 3,842,349 4,608,983
Finance costs capitalised in real estate
projects under development during the year 70,564 45,883 70,564 45,883
Capitalisations rate 2.7-5.75% 2.7-5.9% 2.7-5.75% 2.7-5.9%
As at 31 December, the Group had real estate projects as follows:
Consolidated Separate

financial statements

financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014
Number of projects on hand 18 21 17 20
Contracted sales value (in million Baht) 16,238 16,483 15,559 15,820
Proportion to total sales of project (%) 72.81 69.55 72.31 68.81

10 Land and development costs for sale

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)
Land and development costs for sale 2,214,238 1,675,090 1,329,193 1,662,970
Less allowance for impairment - (14,178) - (14,178)
Net 2,214,238 1,660,912 1,329,193 1,648,792

11 Assets used as collateral

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)

Savings accounts 5,365 6,518 4,071 5,182
Fixed deposit accounts - 12 months 1,077 - 823 -
6,442 6,518 4,894 5,182

Real estate projects under development
and land and development costs for sale 3,113,359 2,559,467 3,107,584 2,553,692
Land - 2,192 - 2,192
Investment properties 2,773,833 - 5,026 -
Total 5,893,634 2,568,177 3,117,504 2,561,066

Savings accounts and fixed deposit accounts and land are pledged as collateral with banks in respect of letters of guarantee. The issuing

bank’s letters of guarantee to a government agency are used to guarantee infrastructure for the new developing projects of the Group.

The Group and the Company have pledged or mortgaged substantial portion of real estate projects under development, land and development
costs for sale and investment properties as collateral for the liabilities to financial institutions.
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Investments in subsidiaries

At 1 January
Acquisitions

At 31 December

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014

(in thousand Baht)

: - 25,940 25,940
= = 1,927,450 =
= - 1,953,390 25,940

In June 2015, the Company made a new investment in 100% of the issued and paid up capital of Bantudthong Pattana Co., Ltd, incorporated

in Thailand, for a consideration of Baht 1 million.

In October 2015, the Company made a new investment in 100% of the issued and paid up capital of MK71 Co., Ltd, incorporated in Thailand,

for a consideration of Baht 1 million.

In October 2015, the Company made a new investment in 49% of the issued and paid up capital of S71 Holding Co., Ltd, incorporated in
Thailand, for a consideration of Baht 1,100 million. In November 2015, the Company additional invested in 36.45% of the issued and paid up

capital of Baht 401 million. As a result, the Group equity interest in such subsidiary increased from 49% to 85.45%.

In October 2015, the Company made the investment in Prospect Development Co., Ltd. (see note 4).

Investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, and dividend income from these investments for the years then ended, were

as follows:
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Samukkee Cement Co., Ltd.’s non-current liabilities include a bank loan.



14 Non-controlling interest
The following table summarises the information relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has a material non-controlling interest, before

any intra-group eliminations:

In 2014, there were no Group subsidiaries that had a material non-controlling interest.

15  Other long-term investments

Other long-term investments of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.
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16  Investment properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2015 by external, independent property valuers, at projected discount cash flow and

open market values on an existing use basis. The appraised value was Baht 4,050 million.
Investment properties comprise a number of commercial properties that are leased to third parties.

Measurement of fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional
qualifications and recant experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The independent valuers provide the fair value

of the Group’s investment property portfolio an annual basis.

The fair value measurement for investment property of Baht 4,050 million has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs

to the valuation technique used.

1 1 o ANNUAL REPORT 2015
M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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The gross amount of the Group and Company’s fully depreciated property and equipment that was still in use as at 31 December 2015
amounted to Baht 142.71 million and Baht 141.58 million, respectively (2014: Baht 136.44 million and Baht 139.88 million, respectively).

18  Leasehold right

19 Intangible assets

1 1 6 ANNUAL REPORT 2015

M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED




20 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December were as follows:

Movements in total deferred tax assets during the year were as follows:
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Deferred tax assets
Accrued expense
Employee benefit liabilities

Total

Separate financial statements

At Credited (charged) At

1 January 2014 to profit or loss 31 December 2014

(Note 35)

(in thousand Baht)

2,884 633 3,517
17,649 1,620 19,269
20,533 2,253 22,786

Deferred tax assets note recognised. The tax losses of Baht 10.82 million expire in 2020. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in

respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group and the Company can

utilise the benefits therefrom.

21  Interest-bearing liabilities

Current

Bank overdrafts

Secured

Short-term loans from financial Institutions
Secured

Unsecured

Short-term loans: person

Unsecured

Current portion of long-term loans
from financial institutions

Secured

Bank overdrafts and
short-term loans
Current portion of finance lease liabilities

Total current interest-bearing liabilities

Non-current

Long-term loans from financial institutions
Secured

Unsecured

Long-term debentures
Unsecured

Long-term loans

Finance lease liabilities

Total non-current interest-bearing

liabilities

Total interest loans liabilities

1 1 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2015
M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)

264 - 264 -
906,345 - - -
530,000 430,000 530,000 430,000

1,436,345 430,000 530,000 430,000
409,703 - - -
328,335 - 321,994 -

2,174,647 430,000 852,258 430,000

582 546 582 546

2,175,229 430,546 852,840 430,546
545,452 865,286 545,452 865,286

23,659 - - -
569,111 865,286 545,452 865,286
1,495,000 - 1,495,000 -
2,064,111 865,286 2,040,452 865,286
- 582 - 582
2,064,111 865,868 2,040,452 865,868
4,239,340 1,296,414 2,893,292 1,296,414




The periods to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities, excluding finance lease liabilities, as at 31 December were as follows:
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014

(in thousand Baht)

Within one year 2,174,647 430,000 852,258 430,000
After one year but within five years 2,064,111 865,286 2,040,452 865,286
Total 4,238,758 1,295,286 2,892,710 1,295,286

As at 31 December 2015 the Group and the Company had unutilised credit facilities totaling Baht 797.69 million and 797.69 million, respectively
(2014: Baht 617.21 million and Baht 617.21 million, respectively).

At 31 December 2015, the Group and the Company had credit lines from several local banks totaling Baht 2,422.88 million and Baht 2,422.88
million, respectively (2014: Baht 1,814.67 million and Baht 1,814.67 million, respectively).

The above long-term loans are collateralized by the assets pledged or mortgaged (See note 11).

Long-term loans

The Company entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution, Tulip Capital Finance Ltd., dated on 1 July 2015 with a credit facility
of USD 25 million at 15 percent interest rate. However the interest will be paid by the subsidiary’s directors, which interest is not presented
in the consolidated financial statements. The Company mortgaged the land and the subsidiary’s share certificates as the loan collateral.

Under certain loan agreements, in 2015, the Group and the Company carried interest on long-term financial institutions as specified in the
agreements at 4.50 - 5.75% and 4.50 - 5.75% per year, respectively (2014: 4.350-5.875% and 4.350-5.875% per year, respectively).

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institution bear interest at market rates.

Long-term debentures

Debentures Unit Unit par Total value Issue date Term Maturity date  Coupon rate
(in thousand (in Baht) (in million (% per
units) Baht) annum)
Unsecured debenture
no. 1/2015 (repayment 25 March 2 years 13
interest every 3 months) 170 1,000 170 2015 days 7 April 2017 3.90
Unsecured debenture
no. 2/2015 (repayment
interest every 3 months) 1,000 1,000 1,000 24 April 2015 3 years 24 April 2018 4.25
Unsecured debenture 2 years
no. 3/2015 (repayment 12 October 11 months 10 October
interest every 6 months) 325 1,000 325 2015 28 days 2018 3.28
Total 1,495

The Company has to comply with certain conditions under right and duty of debenture issuer such as the maintenance of debt to equity ratios,

dividend payments.

s1evulsz91l 2558
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Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities as at 31 December were payable as follows:

The Company has hire-purchase agreement to purchase motor vehicles from local leasing companies, with a term of payment in 4 years,
and repaid in monthly installments, with certain conditions and restrictions as specified in the hire-purchase agreement.

The currency denomination of trade accounts payable as at 31 December was as follows:

22  Trade accounts payable

Trade accounts payable of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

23  Other current liabilities

1 20 ANNUAL REPORT 2015
M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



24  Employee benefit obligations

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)
Present value of unfunded obligations 74.961 98.138 74538 96,344
Statement of financial position obligations for 74,961 98,138 74,538 96,344
Year ended 31 December
Statement of comprehensive income
Recognised in profit or loss:
Long-term employee benefits 9,723 9,670 9557 9,193

Movements in the present value of the employee benefit obligations:
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014

(in thousand Baht)
Employee benefit obligation at 1 January 98,138 89,563 96,344 88,246

Include in profit or loss

Current service costs and interest 9,723 9,670 9,557 9,193
Others

Benefits paid (33,365) (1,095) (33,239) (1,095)
Acquired in business combination (Note 4) 465 - - -
Transfer employee from a subsidiary - - 1,876 -
Total (32,900) (1,095) (31,363) (1,095)

Defined benefit obligation at

31 December 74,961 98,138 74,538 96,344

Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements

2015 2014 2015 2014
(%)
Discount rate 2.90-4.83 4.54-4.83 4.54-4.83 4.54-4.83
Future salary growth 3.94-6.40 3.94-6.40 3.94-6.40 3.94-6.40

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables (TMO 2008).

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would

have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

(in thousand Baht)

Defined benefit obligation 31 December 2015 Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.50% movement) (2,728) 2,887 (2,728) 2,887
Future salary growth (0.50% movement) 3,881 (2,695) 3,881 (2,695)
Turnover rate (0.50% movement) (225) 115 (225) 115

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation

of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

s1evulsz91l 2558
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25

Long-term provision

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2558 2557 2558 2557
(in thousand Baht)
At 1 January - - - -

Provisions made 11,500 - 11,500 -

At 31 December 11,500 - 11,500 -

During the year 2015, the Group has made a provision of 11.50 million Baht in accordance with a case from a juristic person requesting
the Company to pay the relevant costs of the transfer of utilities land and property in a project. Presently, the case is under consideration by
the Supreme Court.

26 Other non-current liabilities

27

122

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014
(in thousand Baht)

Advance received - utilities

maintenance fee 96,387 85,808 87,760 78,396
Leasehold payable 10,262 10,050 6,700 10,050
Deposits from customers 35,780 - - -
Others 15,323 16,210 15,323 16,210
Total 157,752 112,068 109,783 104,656

Share capital

Par value 2015 2014

per share Number Baht Number Baht

(in Baht) (thousand shares / in thousand Baht)
Authorised
At 1 January
- ordinary shares 1 861,317 861,317 861,317 861,317
Decrease share capital 1 (933) (933) - -
Increase share capital 1 131,626 131,626 - -
At 31 December
- ordinary shares 1 992,010 992,010 861,317 861,317
Issued and paid-up
At 1 January
- ordinary shares 1 860,384 860,384 860,384 860,384
Increase share capital 1 131,626 131,626 - -
At 31 December
- ordinary shares 1 992,010 992,010 860,384 860,384

At the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on 26 August 2015, the shareholders approved the issue and reduction in the Company’s
authorised share capital as follows:

The reduction of the registered capital of the Company from the existing amount of Baht 861.31 million (861.31 million ordinary shares with
a par value of Baht 1 per share) to Baht 860.38 million (860.38 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share) by canceling the
0.93 unissued registered ordinary million shares (0.93 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share). The Company registered
the reduction in the authorised share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 3 September 2015.

The increase of the registered capital of the Company from the existing amount of Baht 860.38 million (860.38 million ordinary shares with
a par value of Baht 1 per share) to Baht 992.01 million (992.01 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share) in order to finance
part of the purchase price of the proposed investment in Prospect Development Co., Ltd (Note 4). The Company registered the increase in
the authorised share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 4 September 2015.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Share premium
Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires companies to set aside share subscription monies received in excess of the par

value of the shares issued to a reserve account (“share premium”). Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.

Reserves

Appropriations of profit and/or retained earnings

Legal reserve

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 Section 116 requires that a public company shall allocate not less than 5% of its annual
net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”), until this account reaches an amount not less

than 10% of the registered authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Segment information

The Group has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s strategic divisions. The strategic divisions offer different
products and services, and are managed separately because they require different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the
strategic divisions, the chief operating decision maker (CODM) reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The following

summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments

Segment 1 Real estate

Segment 2 Rental warehouse, factory and others
Segment 3 Golf services

Segment 4 Others

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit before
tax, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group’s CODM. Segment profit before tax is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other

entities that operate within these industries.

s1evulsz91l 2558 1 23
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33

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Employee benefit expenses

Defined contribution plans

The defined contribution plans comprise provident funds established by the Group for its employees. Membership to the funds is on a voluntary
basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at rates ranging from 5% to 7% of their basic salaries and by the Group at rates
ranging from 5% to 7% of the employees’ basic salaries. The provident funds are registered with the Ministry of Finance as juristic entities
and are managed by a licensed Fund Manager.

Expenses by nature
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34  Finance costs

35 Income tax expense
Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

1 26 ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Separate financial statements

2015 2014

Rate (%) (in thousand baht) Rate (%) (in thousand baht)
Profit before income tax expense 554,763 542,776
Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate 20 110,952 20 108,555
Income not subject to tax (3,940) (6,568)
Expenses with additional deduction for tax purpose (250) (164)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 500 276
Total 16 107,262 19 102,099

Income tax reduction
Royal Decree No. 577 B.E. 2557 dated 10 November 2014 grants the reduction to 20% of net taxable profit for the accounting period 2015

which begins on or after 1 January 2015.

On 22 January 2016, The National Legislative Assembly has approved a reduction of the corporate income tax rate from 30% to 20% of net

taxable profit for the accounting period which begins on or after 1 January 2016.

The Group has applied the tax rate of 20% in measuring deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 in accordance
with the clarification issued by the FAP in 2012.

Promotional privileges
By virtue of the provisions of the Industrial Investment Promotion Act of B.E. 2520, the Group has been granted privileges by the Board

of Investment relating to develop property for factory and warehouse. The privileges granted include:

exemption from payment of income tax on profit from the promoted businesses for a period of 3 years commencing as from the date on
which the income is first derived from such operations, not exceeding 100% of investment which excluded from land and working fund;

In case of loss of business during the income tax exemption, loss occurred during the period can deducted from net income in subsequent

from exemption period, not exceeding five years from the expiry date.
As a promoted company, the subsidiary must comply with certain terms and conditions prescribed in the promotional certificates.
Summary of revenue from promoted and non-promoted businesses:

Consolidated financial statements

2015 2014
Promoted Non-promoted Total Promoted Non-promoted Total
busi-nesses businesses busi-nesses businesses

(in thousand Baht)
Local services 4,075 60,134 64,209 - - -

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
The calculations of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were based on the profit for the years attributable

to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the number of ordinary shares outstanding during the years as follows:
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

(in thousand share / thousand Baht)

Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Company (basic) 626,715 447,332 447,500 440,676
Number of ordinary shares

outstanding at 1 January 860,384 860,384 860,384 860,384
Effect of shares issued on 26 October 2015 24,161 - 24,161 -
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding (basic) 884,545 860,384 884,545 860,384
Earnings per share (basic) (in Baht) 0.71 0.52 0.52 0.51

s1evulsz91l 2558 1 27
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Dividend
At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 28 April 2015, the shareholders approved the appropriation
of dividends of Baht 0.25 per share, amounting to Baht 215.08 million. The dividend was paid in May 2015.

At the Board of Directors’ Meeting of the Company held on 14 August 2014, the Board approved the appropriation of interim dividends
of Baht 0.10 per share amounting to Baht 86.03 million. The interim dividend was paid in September 2014.

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 28 April 2014, the shareholders approved the appropriation

of dividends of Baht 0.20 per share, amounting to Baht 172.06 million. The dividend was paid in May 2014.

Financial instruments
Financial risk management policies
The Group is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations

by counterparties. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Group. The Group has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable balance
between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. The management continually monitors the Group’s risk management

process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Capital management
The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Board monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as result for operating activities divided

by total shareholders’ equity, excluding non-controlling interests and also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Group’s operations and its cash flows
because loan interest rates are mainly fixed. The Group is primarily exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowings. The Group mitigates
this risk by ensuring that the majority of its borrowings are at fixed interest rates in the beginning years beginning base on the financial
institution’s condition and uses to manage exposure to fluctuations in fix interest rates on specific borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counterparty to settle its financial and contractual obligations
to the Group as and when they fall due.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. At the reporting date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. However, due to the
large number of parties comprising the Group’s customer base, Management does not anticipate material losses from its debt collection.

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Foreign currency risk
Management believe that the foreign currency risk for the operation is minimal because revenues and expenses are principally denominated
in Thai Baht.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying values shown in the consolidated and separate statement of financial

position at 31 December were as follows:
Consolidated / Separate financial statements

Carrying amount Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in million Baht)
31 December 2015

Current asset

Mutual fund held for trading 396,211 - 396,211 - 396,211

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



40

41

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value hierarchy
The table above analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets. These fair value measurements are categorised into different
levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used. The different levels are defined as follows.

® | evel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.
® | evel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

® | evel 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group determines Level 2 fair values for mutual fund and long-term debentures using a total net assets of investments and projected

cash flow, respectively.

Commitments with non-related parties

Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) not yet adopted

A number of new and revised TFRS have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those new and revised TFRS that may be relevant to the Group’s operations, which become effective for annual financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, are set out below. The Group does not plan to adopt these TFRS early.
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The Group has made a preliminary assessment of the potential initial impact on the consolidated and separate financial statements of these

new and revised TFRS and expects that there will be no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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Reclassification of accounts
Certain accounts in the 2014 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the 2015 financial statements.

Significant reclassifications were as follows:

The reclassifications have been made because, in the opinion of management, the new classification is more appropriate to the Group’s
business.
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M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

The Company and Other Referred Persons

> Company
Registration No.

Head Office

Tel

Fax

E-mail

Web Site

Principal Business

Registered Capital

Paid Up Capital

Legal Consultant

> Registered on

Address

Tel

Fax

Call center

E-mail

Web Site
Debentures Agent

Financial Consultant

> Auditor

Address

Tel
Fax

C.P.A.

Contract

Intermediary

: M.K. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT PLC.
: 0107536001567 (PCL. 230)
: 719 M.K. Building, Bantadthong Road,

Wang Mai, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330

: 0-2216-6600-18

: 0-2216-6619

. contact@mk.co.th

: www.mk.co.th

: Real Estate Development

: Baht 992,010,177 (Nine hundred and ninety-

two million ten thousand one hundred and

seventy-seven Baht)

: Baht 992,010,177 (Nine hundred and ninety-

two million ten thousand one hundred and

seventy-seven Baht)

: None

THAILAND SECURITIES DEPOSITORY CO, LTD.

: 93 Ratchadaphisek Road,

Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400, Thailand

: 0-2009-9000

: 0-2009-9991

: 0-2009-9999

: SETContactCenter@set.or.th
: www.tsd.co.th

: None

: None

: KPMG Phoomchai Audit Co.,Ltd.
: 195 Empire Tower, 50"- 51" Floors,

South Sathorn Road Bangkok 10120, Thailand

: 0-2677-2000
1 0-2677-2222

: Miss. Vannaporn Jongperadechanon

Certified Public Accountant Registration
No. 4098

Mr. Vichien Thamtrakul

Certified Public Accountant Registration

No. 3183

: None
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MKReal Estate Development PCL. . the first real estate development listed company in The Stock Exchange of Thailand with more over fifty years experience, have developed more than fifty quality projects including various
prices of single houses, townhouses and condominiums both Bangkok and perimeter.
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